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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202}

ABOUT US

international Enterdainment Holdings Limited {the Company} is an intemationa holding graup majority owned
by Providence Equity Partners. The principal activity of the Company 5 1o hold companies that cany out
complamentary activities acrass the value chain of ive entertainment and thedatre—relaled activity, principatly
in the UK, USA, and Continentat Ewope (e Group]. The Group censiders that these markets have signilicant
potential for growth and fanms the basis For the Group's strategy of further growth and expansion.

The Company's main holding is The Ambassador Theatre Group Limided (ATG). ATG s ¢ global leader in live
sntertginment and is a fully integrated operator across the entire ive enterfainment valye chain, with activities
n venue opearations. ticketing, marketing services and content production. ATG operates in Gemrmany fhrough
its subsicliary Mehrl-BB Entertainment GmbH {Mehr]-BB|, which was formed by the merger of the Meryl Group
{acquired in May 2018} with the B8 Entertainment Group of companies jocquired in Moy 2015}

QVERVIEW ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ATG is lTocused on providing a high level of service 1o two groups of customers; producers and audisnce
members. By making the end-to-end “customer journey” of owr audience top prcrity, we will ensure that our
venues are the best stages for the highest quality content developed by both cur own in-house os well os 39
party producers.

Venue Operallons

The aim of our venue operations division is fo provide a great service to both our producers and our audience
members. We generafe revenues from renting our venues o productions as well as seling food and

pevergges 1o our audience mernbers,

Cver the ast finoncial year, to help mitigate the impact of COVID-19, the Group's capital expenditure has
been rephased and pricdtized on essential maintenance. However, as we move towards the easing of
government restrictions and re-opening of venues, investment in improving the quaiity of venues o enhonce
our customens' thealte-going experience will resume. Many of the Group's venues are historic buildings
which have an important significance in their local areqs. investment in the maintenance of thase bulldings
is central to the Gioup's custodianship of them for the benefits of future generations of audiences. The
development and improvemaent of these venues lo meet the needs and expectalions of today's audiences
and producers are equally impaortant,

in the UK, the Group owns and oparates some of the most iconic venues wilh 10 In London ang 21 more
across the counfty. The Group operatss 15 theatres in the USA, InCluding two Broadway venues (the Lyric
and the Hudson), and 13 theatres in other US cities, The Group aiso operates five venues in Germany as part
of the Meairl-BB Entertainment Group.

Tickeling

The Group operates the iargest theatre ticketing business in the UK and seils the majority of fickets to shows

in ity venues through its own ticketfing businesses.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK FERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Content Production

A key stratagy of tho Group's Content Production division is to find. secure, and produce high-quality shows
for both ATG and thirdparty venues. The Group develops and produces new content in addition to co-

progducing, invesling in and presenting content from independent producers.
Markeling

The Group through its subsidiary componies of AKA Graup, headauarered in London and 88 Group, head-
quartered in Mannheim, Germany, is able to offer a wide range of marketing services, which are in-line and
complementary to the Group's overdl strategy. AKA, a giobdl enterdinmen! marketing and medic
advertising agency for the live enrertainment, arts and cultural industries has offices in London, Manchester,
New York and Australia. AKA has continued to support the Group's strategy of developing independent yet
compltementary business nes to provide a fullservice expenence 1o clients within the theatre and live
entertainment industry. Futherrmore, AKA has seen its business offering extend further ofield with clients not

directly linked to the live entertainment industry, such as museums, galleries, gardens and zoological centres.

Alongside its produclion services, Mehr-BB Group, via its subsidiary ESMS, provides marketing services for live

entertginment productions in German-speaking Europe.
REVIEW OF FY21

The Group's cporations were significantiy disrupted in FY21 due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, All jwisdictions in
which the Group operates had social distancing reshictions which reqguired the closue of all its venues.
Throughiout the yedar, the Group has been focused on conserving cash through cost restructuring and supplier
negotiations as well os implemenfing availoble govemment support, in the form of fulough schemes, tax

payment defemrals, business rates relief and grants,

The Group has renegatiated its covenants with its lenders and extended the maturity of its senior laans tc 2025
The Group also raised additional funds from a new minority investor, Amplify Capitai tnvestment Ple, Lid, which
is owned by Siveroke fartness.

The Group has postponed the majorily of its programming inlo the fulure and gs a result, has retained a high
proportion of the bolonce of advances saies of licket!s sold pre-COVID- 19 shut down,

The loss before tax for the pericd was £147.1 million {2020: £33.9 miliion]. Curent year and prior vear losses are
attributable to the impact of COVID-12 on the Group.

Crrmritindt lnbnen~blien



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

KEY PERFORRMANCE INDICATORS (KPls)

: ‘ Revenue ‘ Operafing loss
. ' « | {2020: £2.2m operating
[2020: £476.7m) : profi)

Non-financiol KPis:

Due to the closure of venues throughout FY21, the non-financial KR usually used to monitor the business
have not been considered by management, with focus instead on cash management and cost reduction.

Fimgnclol KPls:
- Revenve ol £41.6m decreased 91% from 2020 as COVID-1? forced the closure of all of the Group's

venues for the full year. Fleass refer to note 3 for geographicail analysis of revenue.

- The operating loss of £94.6m results from e reduction in revenue, offset by [ower cos! of sates ond
action tgken by management to reduce operating expenseas.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW

The position of the Group at the period-end is set aut in the consolidated steaternent of financial position on
pages 40 and 41, the consolidated statement of cash tiows on page 44 and in the related notes on pagas 45
tc 8%,

- Cash from operating aclivilies was anet cash outilow of £108.5 rrllion {2020: infiow of £42.2 milian). This
reflects the impact of COVID-19 on the year's trading, with an operoting loss of £94.6 milion {2020:
operating profit £2.2 million) and negative net working capitat cash flow of £43.5 milion [2020; positive
£10.7 million}.

- Investing cash flows incliude £14.8 milion (2020: £54.1 million} of capital expenditure. Capital expenditure
was minimized in the year to preserve cash. This was offset by £1.4 milion {2020: £1.9 milion) net

fecoupment in snow investments in the period.

- Net debt, including finance lease labilities, is consisfent with prior vear af £544. 1milion {2020; £564.2
million}. New sharehalder loons of £135.0 million were ralsed, offset by repayrment of £85.5 million of bank
loans and £11.1 million of finance lease repayments. Closing cash was £185 4 million, up Fom £13%.1 mificn
at March 2020, and included a £2.6 millign escrow balance (2020: £8.8 million).

- New shares were issued during Yhe year, raising £151.3 milion,

3
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Leverage and likpidity

The Group agreed with its lenders temporary amendments 1o tha EBITDA calculation used 1o fest #s leverage
covencmt, which toke inlo account the impoct of reduced trading. Under this amended agreement the
Groupr complied with its net leverage covenant trwoughout the period.

The net leverage covenant specifically focuses on the drawn senior debl of the Group so excludes

shareholdor loans and finance lease liabilities (refer to note 1%).

The cash balonce sed For leverage covenant testing excludes the cash balonce held by subsidiaries outside
of the banking group of £45.8m at 27 March 2021 [2020: Nil).

Net debt for covenan! purposes at 27 March 2021 was £310.3 million {£358.0 milion of senior debt phus £69.4
rrillian of revolving credil fachity nel of cash (excluding escrow) of £117.1 milion). This was £13.0 milion higher
than the pricr yaar ending bolance of £297.3 milfion.

Cash As at 27 March 2021, the Group had cosh and cash equivalents of £185.4 million {2920:
£139.1 milion}, including escrow accounts which are held tor use primarily in connection
with specific productions, The Group also had additional available revolving facilities of
£5.6 milion [2020: £5.4 million). The cash balance increased by £46.4 milkon in the period,
while freely available cosh increased by £52.7 million.

£€m For the 52 week
peitiod ended

27 March 2021

Operating cash Nows {108.5)
investing cash flows {13.3)
Finoncing cash flows }70.2
Net cash flows 4.4
Impact of foreign exchonge 2.0
Movement in cash balance 464

4
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
EOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD EMDED 27 MARCH 2021
Bonrowings  The Graup has total avaiiobie bank facilities of £433.0 million, of which £5.6 million remains
ungirawr o the period end.

The senior debt is secured by a debenture over the majority of the assets of the Group.
The senior facilities agreement also requires the Group to comply with certain covenants,
As at 27 March 2021, the Group was in compliance with its covenants.

The Group also has loans from its shareholders totalling £139.2m, including accrued interest
(2020: ENil}. interest on sharehclder loans s non-cash paying and gccrues at fixed rotes
ranging between 4.0% and 10.0%.

The Group has a finance lease creditor of £166.1 million (2020: £177.2 million}.

The malurity of the dabt is shown in notes 19, 20 and 28 to the finoncial statemendts.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to the pericd end, the Group compistad the acquisition of Nedernander Dairoit LLC and
Proadway San Francisco LLC for total consideration of £173.9 milion. This acquisition adds two thealras in San
francisco and three in Detroit to the Group's portfoiio of owned and operated venues.

Subsequent o the period end the Group received €5.4 million of COVID-19 related government grant income
from the German govemmaent,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The strong lundamentals that underpin the theatrical induslry combined with the quality of owr portfoiio of
venues confribufe to the Directors’ confidenca in the iong temm growth of the business in future years, in order
to withstand the curent challenges of COYID-1P, the Group will conbinue to judiciously moritor s cost base
and preserve and protect Bs lquidy position whilst ensuiing thot we are adeguately prepared for § speedy
return to operations,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (confinved)
FOR YHE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group recognises the mportance of its environmenial responsibilities, monitors its impact on the
srvirorment, and designs and implaments oppropricte policies o minimise ony domogs thal might be
caused by the Group's activities.

The Group seeks to reduce the environmental impact of its operations through responsible resource
procurement and consistentiy thrives to eliminate waste with ocur supply chain portners. Specifically, we are
driving efficient energy procurement, diverting all of our waste from landfill and where possible, instaling
energy efficiant systerns in our venugs. As an organisation our environmental impact i o key pillar of our
overarching Corparate Social Responsibitity strategy.

The closure of the Group's venues throughout the year coused the mgority of its ongoing environmental
impact initictives to be poused. However, the closure of ol venues and offices has initsalf raduced the Group's

anvironmental impact,
Greenhouse Gas Repariing

The Group is required by the Companies Act 2006, Regulations 2013 fo measure and reports ifs direct and

indirect UK gieenhouse gas emissicns.

Direct greenhouse gos emissions are from sources that are owned or confrolled by the Group. Indirect
greenhouse gas emissiors are from sources owned or controfled by other entities but are o cansequence of

the activities of the Group.

The methodology uvsed fo calculate emissions 5 based on the Gieenhowse Gos Protocol’s corporote
Accounting ond Repaorting Standord gpproach. The UK govermment conversion factor guidance {“DEFRA")
was used to calculate emission tactors,

Greanhouse gas reporting is split between three categories. The explanations for thase are as follows;

scape 1; Direct emissions confroliad by the Group. This includas gas and il used for heating as well os emissions

frorm company cars {both owned and leased).
Scope 2 ndirect emissions exclusively composed of purchased elechicity within the Group.

Scope 3 Indirect emissions which ocour af sources which are not owned or confrolled by the Group and
which are not classed o scope 2 emissions. This includes emissions from rental vehicles where the Group
purchased the fuel.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {(continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Ahsolute UK carbon emissions {tonnes of COy Year endaed 27 March 2021
Scops | T ‘ 2,03586
Scope 2 5687
Scope 3 792
3,000,465
an
UK carbon intensity
Tonnes of CO. per £°000 of ravenus ) 0.14
Tonnes of CO: per amployee 0.8%
QUR PEQPLE
Number of employees at 27 March 2021 Women Men Total
Directors of the company 1 ' 4 5
Other senior management 20 43 &3
Employees 2,205 1,793 3,994

The Group complies with all relevant Jegisiotion inciuding those specificolly targeted at preventing
discrimination. Such principles are embedded through the organisation by the reguisite palicies. The Group
is committed to ensuring the hedlth, safely and welfare of its employess as for as is reasonably practicable.
The Group seeks to ensure that stalutory duties are met at al fimes and that it operates effective heaith and
safety management policies and procedures.

The Group's policy is to consull and discuss with employees, through unions. staff councils, meetings and
company-wide surveys, matters likely to affect employees' interests. information on matters of concem to
employees is given through information bulletins and reperts which seek 1o achiavg o common awareness on

the part of ol empioyees of the financiat and economic factors affecling the Group's pgerformance,

The Group continues to run its “Be a Star” and "Be a Star Manager” training programmes. focusing on Front of
House and Box Office stoff from when they join the Group, developing their skills 1o improve customer
experignce, and frther along the ne, the key aspects of people management. The Group olsq uns o bwo
yvear “Rising Star” programme for some of our highest potential junior staff as well as a leadership course for
senior managers “Leading Lights®. In FY20, we launched our sixth cohont of Rising Stars, and a thid Leading
Lighits class.

The Group's paolicy is 1o recruit disabled workers for those vacongies that they are dole to fill. Al necessary
assistance with initial fraining courses Is given. Once employed. a career plon is developed so Qs to ensure
suitatle opportunities for eqch disabled person. Arrangements are made, wherever possible, for retraning

14
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

emplovees who become disabled, to endbile them to perform work identified as approptiate ta thew oplitudes
and abilities.

We continue to suppert internal engagemant inftiatives such as infermnational women's Oay. Pride and Mental
Headlth Awaraness week, with more people becoming invalved in all geographies.

Social and Communily Involvement

The Group recognises that regional thegtres, both in the UK and USA, are rooted in the heart of their local

communities.

Marny of the UK regionct theatres have Creotive Leaming departments which take a leading role in
contribuling 1o the social cohesion of their communities in partnership with charities. frusts and orgonisations
nationwide, including several local awthorities and further education partners. Over the coune of o year,
Crective Leaming con boast more than 70,000 participants of dil ages and abilities throughout the UK,

People of o wide variety of ages and abkilities parficipate in the Group's Credtive Leaming aclivities. Oflen
inspired by the productions af venues, these can include workshops with visiting companies, backstage tours
and pre-show talks, and also Youth Theatres, summer schools and classes for adults. in addition to this, many

regional venues are used for several waeks a year by local amateur production campanies.

On Broadway, the Lyric Theatre hosts an autism friendly performance of Harry Potter and the Cursed Child,
enlightening more than 200 children and adults who are diagnosed with an autism spectum disorder or other
sensitivity issues and their familes and friends. Partnering with Thealre Development Fund (1DF}, slight
adjustments to the production have been made so tha! the show is presentad in a fiendly. supportive
environment, The Hudson Theatre hosts the 52ad $. Project of g performance of David Byme’s Americon
Utopia. Founded in 1981, the 52nd Street Project is o communily-based arls organisafion, with a mission fo
bring together kids from Hell's Kitchen in Manhathan with theatre professionals to create onginol theatre
offered free 1o the general public. Teenagers from the arganisation’s song wiiting group enjoyed the show
and were delightedly surprised by a “Meet 8 Greel” with David and the enfire band after the performance.
The evening aka served as o fundraiser for the Project whate money raised would support the Beloved Non-

Profit Crganization.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Strategic Report hos been prepared solely to provide informalion o shareholders 1o assess how the
directorn have pertormead their duty o promate the success of the Group. The: 1teport contains certain forward -
locking statements, which ore made by the directors in good faith based on the information avaliable to them
at the time that the report was signed, bt are sibject 1o the inherent uncertainties underlying any forward-

looking information and as such shouid be treated with caution.
APPROVAL

This repot was opproved and cuthorised for sue by the Board of Draclors on 21 July 2021 and signed on ils

behalf !
I

John Oldcom

Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {coniinued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

§172 Statement

STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS IN PERFORMANCE OF THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION
172(1) COMPANIES ACT 2005

The Boord of Directors of infermational Entertairment Holdings Limited (“IEH") consider, bath individually and
together, that they have acted in the way they consider, in good faith, would be mest ikely to promote the

success of the Company for the benelit of its stakeholders as a whoie {having regard 1o the stakeholdsrs and
matters set oul In section 172{1) (o} of the Act} in the decisions taken during the period ended 27 March
2021,

S$172(1) A “The likely conseguence of any decision In the long ferm™
The Directors have taken the decision thay believe best suppont BH'S strategic ombifions. More information
can be found under ‘future Developments' on page 5.

$172(1) B “The interest of the compony’s empioyees™
The Diractors recognise that IEH employees are fundomental and core to our business and the delivery of our
strategic ambitions. More Information can be found under *Cur People' onpage 14,

5172{1) C “The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, custemers and others™

{EH stakeholders are customers, producers, suppliers. emplovees, shareholders and lenders andg the Board
recognises the need to regulady review the Idenlily of its stakeholders as it makes decisions. The Board
promotes accountabiiity andt transparency with ol stakeholders.

The Company's fundamental beliet in promoting the public good is demonstrated and supparted by our
Serior Leadership's active engagement across industry badies and our stakeholder cammunity,

The Group has recently intfroduced new customer sngagement surveys which will determing the Net Promoter
score (NPS) of the Group — this process &5 run by an exlemadl company to ensure independence, NPS
performance is being reported to the Boord on a monthiy basis, Althaugh this is a new process, the lindings
are being used ta improve custamer engagement wilh knowledge being shared across all of aur business.

An onnual employee 'Company Dey' dalivered in London provides o briefing an the Company's
peformance and qllows individuals to raise questions and concems. The Group monitors its employesa's
commitment to its guiding framewark by asking members of senior management to suomit an annual
declaralion confirming whethner they have complied with the Group's Code of Conduct, I any employee
wishes to highlight any potential breaches to the Code of Conduct, they con contact the independent
whistleblowing services provider and q formal investigation follows, with anonymous reporfing to the Audit
Committee. Annual employee engagement surveys are pettormed 1o highlight areas requining improvement
in cammunication of the Group's purpose. The Board considers the resulls of dll employee engagement
surveys a good barometer of the workiorce's confidence in the Group's shalegic direction, oplimismn for the
future and career sppatunilias.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIRATEGIC REPORT {conlinued )
EOR THE 52 WEEX PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

The Group produces Gender Pay Reporting and Payment Practices and Performance Reporting, both of
which are published externally, The additional analysis required to conduct this reporting has highlighled some
areas in which the Group needs to imgeove, The Group walcomes these chonges as it seeks 1o constanhy
improve in its engagemen! with all siakehciders.

S$172{1) D “The impuct ol the company's operalions on the community and the environment™
The Directors recognise the impordance of its environmental responsibifities. More details con be found under
‘Environmanital matters” on poge 13

$172{1) E "The desirability of the compony maintaining a repulation for high stondards of business conduct”™

IEH has zero lolerance for madem slavery, bribery and other forms of comuption. We implement and enforce
effective syslerns 1o counter madem slavery, bribery and comuption and have infernal policies in place to
educale our employeaes about how to recognise and deat with Fhese issues 56 as 1o ensure compliance with

lcws,

We rermoin committed to combatting modern slavery, bribery and comuption by:
- Audliting our supply chains;
Tsaining our staff to recognise these issues;

- Monitoring potential risk across our business.

We have a dedicated whistleblowing service lor cur smployees to report misconduct or unethical practices
and have a policy which clearly sets out how members of staff can raise any concerns which they may have.
Details of our code of conduct and modern slavery can be found on the ATG website:

hitps/ fwww,alg.co.uk/corporate-information

hitps./iwww atg.co.uk/atg-modern-slaveny-and-humarn-trafticking-slalement

$172(1) F “The need fo act faidy as between members of the company”
At every Board meeting the Directors review, wilh the management team, the progress against strategic
pricrities ond the changing shape of the business padfalio.

This collaborative apprococh by the Board, together with the Board's approval of the company sirategy. helps
it to pramote the long-team success of the Group. Board decisions are taken against the backdrop of what it
considers to be in the beast Interest of the long-term financial success of the company and ifs stakeheiders,
including shareholders, employaes, the community and environment, our suppliers ond customers.

&



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Principal declsions - engaging with stakeholders

As part of the decision maoking process for the Board, it continues to have regard for the impaoct of its decisions
on the Group's stakehwaiders as required under section 172 of the Companies Acl 2006, The Board takes its
responsibility fowards stakeholders serously and sirives {o build and mainfain productive relationships with
each of them.

We outline here how we engage with our stakehalders to drive ovdcomes.
1. Employees

The Group’s long-term success is predicaled on the commitment and contibution ol its workforce.
Engagement with ow employees is essenticl o meet our skrategic goals,

During this year, the Board has had to take the difficult decision to furlough the majority of the Group's staff
throughout the COVID-19 Pandemic. The use of Govemment Job Retention Schemes in the UK and Germany
has dllowed the Group to avoid. raduce or mitigate redundancies which might otherwise have beenrequired.

Resources have been made avoilcble to employees to support their mental health and wellbeing during this
time. The Group has also implemented regular pulse surveys, CEQ breaktasts and newslettern to ensure that
smpioyees remain engaged throughout this fime.

2. Customers

Customers are ceniral 1o the success of the Group and engagement with our customers cliows the Group to
understand their requirements and drive initictives that seek to consistently imprave the customer experience.

During the period in which the venues have baan clased, the Group has sough! to wse this timea to plan for re-
opening of our vanuas, In order 1o ensure thol customers teal confident in ratuming to owr venues. the Group
has implementad regular customer surveys to better understand what COVID-19 secure measures customers
are expecting to see. The feedback from our customers has been Invaluable in determining our COVID-19
respanse.

Like many businesses, once COVID-19 resulted in the lockdown of our venues, the Group had ¢ large volume
of customer requests Yo monage, To ald our employees ond provide betler customer service, the Group
implemented a new customer service technology soiution and a second customer service coll centre to

manage the infiux of customer gueries in an efficlent aond timely manner.
3. Suppliers

Tha Group has o number of lang-tarm suppier parinerships which are oh impavtant Bat of our business
including in ralation to venue operations and 17 infrastructure.,

The Group engages with its supply chain through o variety of methods including via dedicated reiationship
managers, @ central procurement function and meet the buyer events, The Group recognises the value of ils
supply chain partners ond the collaborative aporoach the Group hos token with its suppliers allowad the
Group to respond proactively and pramplly to the impact of COVID-t 9.

19
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continved )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Ewing 2020, as part of the initiatives 1o presecve liquidity, the Group worked with suppliers to adjust its supply
needs.

4. Content Poriners

Our content portners are key to delivering a successful customer experience. Throughout the COVID-19
Fandemic it has been imperative that we engoge with our content partness to ensuwre that there is o plan for
how we deal with the re-scheduling and cancellation of shows in our venues, We have worked in conjunclion
with our partners to ensure that this has been undartaken in 0 monner which preserves the customer
relationship. The clase working reiationship with our partners has enablod us to plon for the re-opening of our
venues with a strong content pipeling due 1o the continued support from our content partners.

5. Communities ond the Environment

The Group underslands that il has an impact on communities and we engage with them in a number of
different ways including: loGal outreach programmes, craative learning and community partnerships amongst
ofhers, As well os having a central creative outreach function, each of our venues also has its own indiatives
for community engagement. Cug fo our geographic spread across the regions of the UK, North America and
Germany, the Group is able to respond to the specific needs ond opportunities in each areq.

We strive to reduce the environmental impact of our operations, and those of our supply chain partners,
through the responsible sourcing of resources, Key inifiatives Include driving sustainable energy procurement,
instaliing more energy efficient systems in aur venues wherever possible, and diverting all waste from landfil,

é, Sharehciders

The Group is in regular dialogue wilh its shareholdars. The Group's sharehoiders are represented on the Board
and meet regularly throughout the year 1o discuss fhe key decisions to be made by the Group.

The close working relationship with the Group's shareholders has enabled the business to focus on key strategic
objectives which have been set by the Board and focus on long-tesm opportunities that meet the
requirgments of the shareholders,

7. Firancial Institutions

The Group regularly meets with its banks. There is an annual presentalion of the Group's performance, regulor
interim reporting and presentation of the Group's budget. This has enabied the Group to forge sirong relalions
with its bankers and given them a betler understanding of the Group's business and ifs performance.

A good relationship with the Group's bankers has encbled the Group to negotiale o tempaorary adjusimant
to certain financial covenants during the period when the Group's venues have had fo be closed due to the
COVID-19 restrictions.

20



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continved )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Principal decisions made

we outling here some of the principal decisions made by the Group ond how the directors have considered
various stakeholders.

1. COVID-19 Measures

The final month {Mareh) of FY20 was a period of considerable uncerlainty for all businesses, including ours,
which worremted & response 1o the unogrecadentad impoact of the COVID-19 pandsemic. We recognised
quickly that there were likely to be significant implications of this pandemic on ourseives, as well as alf other

location based entenainment businesses, Owr marketing services business was abso Impaciaed o5 many of ils
clhents are theatricat or location enteriainment businesses, fike museums ond galleries. By 17 March 2020, we
had closed all of ow venues worldwide, in order 1o protect show casts and crew members, our employees

and visitors. dince then, we have diligently followed all government guidelines in each relevant geo;jraphy.
In orgier fo preserve liquidify and mitigate the impact of the fixed cosf base duing the pandemic, the Directors
of the Group have taken the killowing rmeGsures:

- created a Business Continuity Committae, which has been focused on crisis management and key
decision making:

- ongoing engagement with all our stakeholders. including our shareholders and ienders;

- implementation of bi-weekly cosh flow forecasts 1o manage liquidity of o granuiar levet thfoughout the
Group;

- robust recpening scenario modeling to drive decision maoking;
- proactive management of rescheguling shows 1o future dates to minimize the leve! of show cancellations;

- asignificant elament of the Group's cast base relates to wages and salories. Where possible, and subject
ta tocal reguicitions, staffing levels and hours warked have beern reduced. Emplayees, inciuding senior
management and directors, have also undertaken salory saeriffices, Government suppart both in the UX
in the form of the Job Retention Scheme and in Germany in the Form of the Kurzarbeit progrom has been
utlised to offset staffing cosls that continue 1o be Incured:

- capital expenditure has been rephased and pricritized on essential mantenance; and

- gctions have been faken 1o defer or permanently reduce paymends of fixed costs and unpoid variabie
coshs from the pre-pondemic peried, incloding agreements with Government fiscal authorities on certain
tax poyments.
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(INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

whilst the Board has made decisions to deal with the immedicte irnpact of the COVID-1% pandemic it has
alsa made these decistons with regards to the Group's longer term strategic objectives, For example, despite
limits on cosh reserves and initiatives o preserve iquidity, the Group hos continued fo invest in COVID-19
secure measures that will need 1o be implemented for re-opening owr venues. Invesiment in key strategic
initicitivers such s IT and cyber security have continued,

2. Investrment in digital capaobilities to dive pre-show ond in-venue F&B

As O custorner facing business it s irmportant to continuo to evoive to improve custamer expenence, The
members of the Board were satisfied tha! the development and roli-out of a new digital foad ond beverage
sales channat wes an importan! step for the Company 1o take to improve the user experience for our
customers. The ability to order food and beverage on-iine pricr to and duting your visit would reduce queues
in the venue and mitigate crowding, reducing the risk of COVID-1? infection.

3. Investment in building CAPEX

Despite aur initigtives to preserve liquidity dusing the period when our venues have beeh closad, the Boord
has also considered 1 prudent to invest in our buildings where we can. Undertaking key repans and
enhancemants, whilst our venues have been closed hos enabled us fo ensure that we do not have to
postpone or interrupt shows to carry out the works. A number of these projects ensure that we provide a better
experience for our custormers and content partners so that they rerrain safeguarded for the future,

4. investing in diversity and inclusion

Despite our venues beng closed, the Board has considered it key 1o confinue to focus on diversity and
inclusion both on and off the stage. Having token into account previous work underiaken by the Diversity
Working Group, the Board has considered it important to expond vpon the iniliatives already undertaken.
improving the diversity of voices within the Group will enhance the longer term success of the Group as a

whole,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Anthony Ball, Non-Executive Direchar

Anthony Ball servad as Chairman of international Entertainment Holdings Umited from Decamber 2014 to April
2021 and remains on the board as a nor-executive director, He has been a senior advisor of Providence tquity
Partners since 2013, He has had @ long and succeassful cargsrin the media and entertainment induskiss in the
UK ond internationally, as chairman of Kaibel Dautschiond from 2005 1o 2013 and as CEQ of BSkyB. the largest
pay-Tv brogdcaster in Eurcpe, Prior fo this, he was The CEQ of the News Corporaiion/Liberty Media joint
venture, Fax/liberly Nehworks, which included the FX Networks, Fox Sports Net and over 20 regional sports
channels throughou! the US He it a nan-executive director of BT Group and chairman of Partland
Communications. Anthony received ¢ MBA from Kingston University and hos been awarded honorory
doctorates from hoth Middlesex University and Kingston University.

Mark Comell, Chief Executive OHicer

mark Cormell was appointed Group CEQ of the Ambassador Theatre Group in May 2018, Prior 10 this he waos
Managing Direcior of Sothaby's Europe and preceding thal, spent 10 years al LVMH, including President and
Chiaf Execulive Officer of Moel Hanhessy USA and Chief Executive Oflicer of Knug Champagne, Mark hes
vast experience in managing large organisations, os well as succeassfully leading consumer-orieniated brands
in the UK. Europe and the USA.

Stephen Evans, Non-Execufive Direclor, Silver Lake Pavners

Stephen Bvans joined Silver Lake in 2008 and is a4 Managing Director. Mr. Evans serves on the board of
Arnbassador Thealre Groups (ATG]. Endeavor and TEG. He is a member of the audit commitlees of City
Football Group and UFC. He diso previowsly served on the boards of Ancestry.com and Serena Software, inc.
Prior to joining Silver Lake, Mr. Evans was a Principal at Cognetas, a pan-European private equity firm, where
he facused on transactions across business and mformation services. Previously, Mr. Evans spent five years at
8ain & Company, based both in Eurcpe and the U.S.. including two years in Bain's private equity group. He is
a mamber of tha executive board of the B Research Foundation, which is dedicated to finding a cure for
Epidermmalysis Bullosa, @ care children's diseasa. Mr. Evans holds an M.A. and an M.Phit from Cambridge
Universily, and an M.BA. From Harvard Busingss School,

David Leigh, Non-Execulive Direclor

Gavid Leigh joined the Intermational Entertainment Holdings Limifed board o3 @ non-éxecutive director in
Qctober 2018, He is CEO af Alexander Mann Solutions. a role he has held since Novernber 2019, Prior to
joining Alexander Mann, David was CEQ of Study Group, and prior to that was CEC ol SHL. Prior to SHL, he was
on the Executive Committes of Groupe Steria, with responsioility for Business Process Outsourcing. David's
earfier background was in private equity (iFormation Group, a joint venture between Goldman Sachs, General
Aliantic Partners and the Boston Consulting Group), consulting [McKinsey & Co} ond law {Herbert Smith).
David has an MA in Sociol and Political Sciences from Combridge University and o post-graduate (egal
qualification from the College of Law, London,
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Alexander Mishanin, Non-Execufive Directar, Providence Equily Pariners

Alexander Mishenin is a vice president based at Frovidence Equify Partners. Prior 1o joining Providence in 2015,
Mr. Mishenin worked o an analyst in the invastment banking group of LP. Morgan in London. Mr. Mishenin
received a Masters in Finance and Law from Duisenberg Scheol of Finance and o Bachelor of Business

Informatics from the Higher Schoof of Economics, Moscow.
Jonathan M. Nelson, Executive Chalman, Providence Equity Partners

#ir. Netson was appointed Chairman of intemational Entertainment Holdings Umited in April 2021, Mr, Nelson
is execullve chairman and founder of Providence Equity Partners, the world's leading private equily fam
focused on media, communications, education and information investments. The fim manages funds with
$45 wilion in commitments and has invested in more than 170 companies giobally since its inception. Mr,
Nelson serves on the board of directors of Ambassader theatre Group and The Chemin Group. He has also
served &s ¢ director of numerous othor Providence portfollo companies. including Bresnan Communications,
Ercom plc, Hulu, Language Line, MatroMet {now ATAT Canadaj. MLS media, Univision, Voicestraam Wirgless
[now T-Mobie US), wamer Music Group, Westem Wireless Comporation [now ATAT Com.} and Yankees
Entertainment and Sports Network (YES).

Mr. Nelson has been g private equily investor for 38 years. He founded Providence In 1#8%.  Previously, he
was a managing director of Naraganset! Capltal, Inc. which he joined in 1983, Al Narmagansett Capital, Mr.
Melson specialized in privale equily invesiments In media. M. Nelson received a Master of Business
Administrafion from the Harvard Business School in 1983 and a Bachelor of Arts from Brown University in 1977,
He is a trustee of Brown University, The Rockefellsr Univarsily and Institute for Advanced Study. Ha is a member
of the Board of Dean's Advisors ot Harvard Business School.

John Oldcom, Chlef Einancial Officer

John Oldcom was appointed as CFO of Intermational Entertainrent Holdings Limited on 1 July 2021 Prior 1o
this John spent three years s the Group CFQ of Argent Foods, a £750m tumover conglomerate of food-related
business. At Argent he oversaw ralalionships with ienders and other key stakeholders, played a key role inthe
group navigating successfully through the pandemic, and led four debt raises / refinancings, and significant
Comporate ond M&A, activity, Pricr to joining Argent in 2018, John spent 25 years working in professionol
practice with Afthur Andersen, Deloitte ond, Iatterly, KPMG, the last 14 years as a portner, He co-led the
craeation and ropid growth of o dedicoted, multi-disciplinary, private equity practics serving global PE clents
and their porifolic companies across Europe, typically in a fast-paced MAA environment.
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George Osborne, Non-Execufive Director

Georgs Osbhorne joined the board of IEH a5 a non-exaculive director in Apyril 2021, He i & pariner ot Robey
Warshow LLP. Prior to his cument rales, George was an MP for sixtean years, the Chancellor of the Exchequer
{2010-201 &) and First Secretary of Stale {2015-2014], and edited the London Evening Standard from 2017-2020,
George s chalr of the not-forprafit Northem Powethiouse Partnershis and o Lecturer at Stanford University,
Califomia. In 2016 he was made a Companion of Honour by Her Majesty the Queen.

Robert Sudo, Non-Execulive Director, Providence Fquity Parlnens

Robert Sudo is a managing director at Providence Equity Partners. e is alse @ director of 8ifé, Closer Sfill Media,
H5E24, Masmovil and LaCentrale. Prior $o joiring Pravidence Equity Pariners in 2004, kobert worked os an
analyst for Goldman Sachs in mergers and ocquisitions and corporate finance, He received a Diploma in
Busingss Administration frorm HHL Leipzig Groduale School of Management,

Andrew Yisdole, Non-Execulive Director, Providence Eqully Pariners

Andrew Tisdale is a Senior Managing Direcior and Co-Head of Europe at Providence Equity Pariners. He is
also o Director of Chime Communication, Closer Still Media, HSE24, TES Global and Noded. Prior tg jcining
Pravidence Equity Fartners in 2008, Andrew wos global co-head of the media and communications group
and a member of Morgan Stanley’s management committee for investment banking. Andrew received a
Masier of Business Administration from the University of North Carolina of Chapel Hill and a Bachalor of Arts
from Vanderpitt University. He currently serves on the Space inndvalion Council at the Califomia Institute of
Technology and, the Board of Advisors for the Yaole School ¢f Drama, and Vanderbilt University’s College of
Ans and Sciences.

Michail Vervisch, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equity Partners

Michaél Vervisch is a managing director at Providence Equity Partners. He is aiso a director of Naded, Mr
Vervisch originaily joined FProvidenca in 2014. In the past he worked as a principal ot Clayten Dubilier & Rice,
as an associate director at K Investmant Partners and as an associate af MeKinsey & Company, Mr, Veaivisch
receivad o Master of Busingss Administration frorm Hoarvard Businass School and holds g Master of Science in
Bectrical Enginesring and a Master of Science In Applied Economics from the Katholieke Universiteit Lelven
in Belgium.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present thair repon and the audited financial stolements for the pericd ended 27 March 2021.
The directors consider the annual report and financial statements to comply substantially with all aspects of
the "Guidelines for Disclosure and Transparency in Privale Equity”.

PIRECTORS

The directors who served during the perod and to the date of signing the financlal stolements [except as
notad) were;

Anthony Baif

Mark Comedll

Stephen Evans Appointed & October 2020
Sinisa Kinic Resigned 4 Oclober 2020
David Leigh

Alexancler Mishenin Appointed & October 2020

Jjonathan Nelson Appointed 27 April 2021
John Oldcom Appointed t July 2021
George QOsborne Appointed 27 April 202§
Robert 3udo

ShanMae Teo Rasigned | July 2021
Anclrew lisdaie

sichael Vervisch Appointed 6 October 2020

The biographies of the curent directors are presented on page 2316 25,

The Group is majority owned by Providence Equity Partners ihrough its investmant funds, Providence Equity
Pariners Yil-A LP and Providence Vil Global Holdings LP, Providence Equily Partners is g glohal alternative
investment firm established in 1989 focused on educalion, media, communications, and information
investments. The fim’s private equity platform specialises in sectar-focused buyout transactions and growth
capital investments. Providence Eguity Pariners made its investment in the Group through [E Luxco S.&4rl.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT {coniinved)

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company has mode qualfying third-parfy indemnity provisions for the benefit of ifs directors which were

maode during the period and remain in force at the date of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the pariod after taxation amounted to £13%.0 million {2020; £25.% million).

No dividends have been pald during the curent pericd [2020: £Nil). No dividends are proposed inrospect to
the currenl period.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continved)

GOING CONCERN BASIS

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the impact of COVID-1? on the Group's trading
continues to be assessed and is subject to rapidly changing extemal factors, including evolving government
responses to control the spread of the vivs and ongoing changes in customer senfiment 1owards ottending

live entertainment events.

Due tc the meagsures taken by govermments woridwide to contral the COVID-19 outbreak, the live
entertainment industry come to o standstil from the second half of March 2020, with all cur venues being

closed for cperations.

Prior o mid-sMarch 2020, the Group had traded well with ¢ programming schedule of highly successful shows
supporting strong operational performance across ol of its temitores. We were in a strong financial position
with all covenonts under the kerms of our Ioans being met. Unfortunately. the closure of cur venues has resulted
in a sharp drop in tumover, Our marketing services businesses are also exgeriencing a drop in tumover as many
of our customers are in the live entertainmeant and cultural & heritage sectors (museums, galleries, zocs); all of
which have had restrictions on their operglions during COVID-1%. Whiist there has been a comrgsponding
reduction in variable costs as a resull of the closure of our venues, the Group continues to have to fund its
fixed cost bese,

In order to prasarve liquidity and mitigate the impact of the fixed cost base during the pandemic. the Directors
of the Group havs taken a number of meagsures Qs set out on page 21 of this report.

The Group has net cument liokilities of £63.4 milion [2020: £168.7 milion] and net assets of £41.1 milion [2020:
£49.0 millon} ot the perod-end datfe. Net current Rabilities include advanced ticket sales of £113.8 million
{2020: £142.4 million). These represen! ticket sales for shows that have yet to malire, with a portion of this
aomount due to flow to the Group, Excluding advance ticket sales and nonefundable grants, the Group has
liakilities due within one year of £144.2 million [2020: £187.0 milion} which are exceeded by current assels of
£227.7 million, {2020: £204.5 million}.

The Group holds cash reserves, excluding required escrow dccounts, inits bank accounts of £182.% million os
at the reporting date. In addition, the Group has received an equity commitmeant om its shareholders, which

is presently undrawn.

The Group operates and robust, bi-weekly cash and cash flow forecasting process covering the period to 31
December 2022,

Sensitivitios are run to refiect different scenarios for when theatres might or wil be able to re-open in the months
following the dote of the approval of these financial skatements. This is done to identify risks to liquidity and
covenont compiionce ond enable management to formulate appropriate and timely mitigation strotegies.
These sensitivilies include severe, but piausible, downside scenarios.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT {continued)

Based on these forecasts and olher factors which may Impac) the Group's futues liquidity pasition, the
Directors have concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on G golng concem basis,

The reqasons for this are as foliows:

-  The Group holds £433.0 million of committed facilties which are subject to net levergge and lquidity
covenants. There is a reduced risk of default on the net leveroge covenant, due 1o a facilly omendment
which allows for aon adjustmant to the net leveroge covenant whilst theatres ore closed by gavernments
dus to COVID-1¥ and during an agreed ramp up period post re-opening. The Group is also subject o a
rminimum liquidliy covenant which is forecost to be met for the next 12 months; and

- Adequate tiquidity Is in place for the next 12 months based on the fareseeable scencrios for theatres, in
terms of re-opening dates, polenticl restrictions en haw our venves can oparate [i.e. social distancing
requirements], and the level of demand from audiences. At present, govemment policy on reopening of
theatrical venues and socicl distfancing requirements vares across the countries and regions that the

Group operates in.

The Board's confidence in the Group's forecasts, its abifity to monage its liquidity requirements. confidence in
the confinued support of our shareholders, and the long ferm potential of the business forms 1he basis of our

praeparation of the financial statements on a geing concern basis.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT {¢onlinved)

MATIERS COVERED IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

Certain matters (post balance sheet events, future developments, principal risks and uncertainlies and
employee matters] are discussed within the Strategic Report and incorporated into the Directors' Report by

reference.
AUDITOR
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that!

- so for ¢ the direclor is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Compony's auditor is

vnaware, ond

- the director has taken all the steps thot hefshe cught to have taken as a direclor in order to moke
himself/herself aware of any relevant oudit information and to establish thot the Company's auditor is

aware of that information.

fhis confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the
Componiles Act 2006,

Deloitte LLP have expressed ther wilingness to continue in office as auditor and a resahution to reappeint them
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

This report was opproved and autharised for issue by the Boord of Directors on 21 July 2021 and sighed on ifs
behaif;

N

John Qlcdcorn

Director

Regisiered office
28 51, Gearge Street, London
WIS ZFA, United Kingdom
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The diractors are rasponsible for preparing the Annual Repon and the inancial statements n accordance
with applicable fow and reguiations.

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial pericd. Under thot iow
the directors have elected to prepare the iinancial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the Ewopean Union. Under company kaw the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied thal they give @ frua and fair view of the state of
affirs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial
statemenits, Intemationat Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

- piopely select ond apply accounting policies

- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, refable,
comparable and understandable information;

- provide gdditional disclosures when complionce with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient
to enable users to understand the impoct of perticular fronsactions, other events and conditions on
the entify's inancigl posifiorn and Bnancial pedomance; and

- mecke an assessment of the Compony's abllity 1o continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain
the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them ta ensure that the finoncial stataments comply with the Companies Act 2004,
They are also respensible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and henca for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and ofher irregulcrities.

The directors are responsinle for the maintenonce and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Compaony's website. Legisiation in the Uniled Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements rmay differ from legistation i other juisdictions.

We confim that to the best of our knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financicl reporting framework,
give @ true and falr view of tha assels, liabilities, financial position and profit o 1055 of the Company
and the underlakings included in the comsolidation taken as g whole:
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT (continued)

- e Strategic Report includss a fair review of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the Compony and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whote,
together with a descriplion of the principal risks and uncertainties that thoy face; and

- the annugl report and financial slataments, taken as o whole, are farr, balanced and understandabie
and provida the information necessary for shareholders 1o assess the Group’s perfomance, business
maodel and slrategy.

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 21 tuly 2021 and is signed on its beholf

Sllfo—

John Qldcom
Diector
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the avdit of the financlal stalements

Oplnion
In our opinion the tinancial siatements of Intemgtional Entertainrment Holdings Limited {the *parent company'}

and its subsidiaries {the "group'):

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as ot 27 March
2023 and of the group*s loss for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with intemationat accounting standards in conformity with
the raquirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2004,

We have audited the finoncial statements which comprise:

« the consolidated statemenl of comprehensive incoms;

+« the consolidated and company statements of financial position;
+ the consolidated and company stalements of changes in equity;
= the consolidated statement of cashflows; and

+ thereigted notes | to 33,

The finonciai reporting framework thot has been applisd in thelr preparation is applicable law and
international accounting standards in confarmity with the requiremeants of the Compaonies Act 2006,

Buasis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with intemational Standards on Auditing [UK) (8As (UK)} and

applicable aw. Our responsibiiities under those standards are further described in the cuditors responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevont 10 our audit of the financiat stotements in the UK, ncluding the Financial Reporting Council’s (the
'FRC's'} Ethicdl $tandard, and we haove fulliled ow other ethical responsibilities in accordance with thase
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtdined s sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for cur opinion,

Caonclusions relating te going concem

in auditing the financial staterments, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
gecounting in the preparation of the financial statements s appropriate.

Qur evaluaticn of the directors’ assessment of the group’s and parent company's abifity to continue to adopt
the going concem basis of accounting included:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

« an assessment of the entfilies linancing faciities including nature of faciities, repayment terms and
covenants,

+  qreview of management's forecasts, including challenging management's key assumptions such s the
recpening dates of theatres, the occupancy levels, the base level of operating costs, the cosh flow to
achieve re-opening. ond the refund rote on advanced sales;

+« an assessment over the amount of haadroom in the forecasts {cash and covenants) on & base case anct
under managemeant’s sensitivity anclysis of an extended dark period or a reduction in occupancy rates;
and

+  review over the model used fo prepare the forecasts, testing of clarical accuracy of those forecasts and

our assessment of the histaricol aceuracy of forecasts prepared by management.

Based on the work we have performed. we have not identified any material uncertaintias relating to events
ar condlifions thal, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent
company's ability t¢ continue as a going concem for g period of at least twelve months Fom when the

firancial statervents are auihorised for issue.

Our rasponsibilities and the responsibilitios of tha directors with respect to going concem are described in the
relevant sections of this roport.

Other inlormation

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than ihe fnancicl
slatements and our guditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained
within the annual repart. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
excepl to the extent otherwise sxplicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion theraon.

Qur responsibility is o read the other information and, in daing so. consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge oblgined In the course of the audil, or
ctherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such material inc onsistencies or apparent matewial
misstatemnents, we are required to determine whether this gives rise o o material misstatement in the financiol
statements themselves. i, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matedial

misstatemnent of this other infarmation, we are required 1o report that fact.

We have nothing tc report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

Responsibiiies of directors

As explagined more hdiy in the directers' resporsibilities statement, the direclors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that Ihey give a true and fair view, ond for such
intemat control as the directors determine is necessary 1o enabile the preparation of inancicl staterments that
are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are respongble for assessing the group’s and the parent
company's ability to continue as © geing concem, disclosing, as applicable. matters retated o going concem
and using the going concem basis of accounting unlass the directars either intend to iguidate the group or
the parent company or to cedse epearafions, or have no realistic altemchive but to do so.

Audllor's respoasibilities for the qudit of the lingnclal statements

Qur objectives are 1o gbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from maoferiol misstatemnent, whether due o fraud or errer, ond to ssue an gudior's report that inciudes
o opinion, Reasonable assurance i a high levei of assurance, but is not o guorantes thal an audit
conducied in accordance with 1SAs (UK] will always detect o maledial misstotement when it exists,
Misstaterments can arise from fraud or eror and are considered matenat . individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic deciions of ysers taken on the basis of these

finoncial statements.

A further description of our responsiDifities for the audit of tha financial statements is located on the FRC's
website at! www e org.ukiauditonr esponsibiities. This description forms part of our auditor's report,

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecling ireguiarities, inciuding raud

iregularities. including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with lows and regulations. We design
pracedurss in line with our responsitilities, outlined agbove, to detect material misstatements in respect of
iregularities. including fraud. The extent (o which ow procedures are capable of detecting imegularities,
including fraud Is detailed below.

Wwe considered the nature of the group's industry and its control environment, and reviewed the group's
documentdtion of their policies and procedures relating to fraud ond compliance with laws and regulations,
We alst enduired of management abowut their own identification and assessment of the risks of iregulcrities,

We obtained an undersianding of the legal and regulatory framework that the group operates in, and

identified the key laws and regulations thot:

« had a direct effect on the datermination of moterial amounts and disclosures in the financiol siatements.
These included UK Companies Act, IFRS, CIRS and tax legisiation; and

= donat have a direct effact on the financiol stotements but complance with which may be fundomental
1o the group's ability to operate or 1o avoid o maleticl penalty:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

We discussed among the audil engagement team, including signficant component audit feams ond refevant
intemal specidlists such s tox, ond valuations specidlists regording the opportunities and incentives thal may

exist within the organisation for foud and how and where frovd might occur in the financial statements.

As aresuit of performing the chove, we identified the greatast potential for fraud or non-compliance with laws
and reguiations in the following areas, and our specific procedures performed to address them are described
below:

+ Judgement and eslimation, which give dse to the nsk of fraud are required in the preparation of
discounted cash Hlow {'DCF'] models usad 1o detarmine whether there is an imparment of goodwill and
ofher assets. The same DCF are applied to support the carying value of the Group's venues. the fraud
risk arises with the eslimates made aver the future trading assumptions, specifically the assumed date of
venues re-opening and the discount rate gpplied. We have challenged moanagement’s assumptions and
considered both supporting or conlradictary evidence whikt alse engaging speciaist input into the audit
of the discount rate n each region. We have also considered the appropriatenass of the sensitivities
performed by management and the disclosures thereof,

+ The Group has utilsed g number of Covld-19 related govemment support schemes. The noture, eligibility
and complexity of the schemes varles between territonies, We idenfified a fraud risk in refation to the
Group's applications under these schemes given the complexity and reduced time period in which the
schemes were established, specifically pinpointed to the Job Retention Schemes in the UK and Germany.
The risk 15 that amounts claimed by the Group could be intentionally, or unintentionally, rmisstated which
could lead to repayments, fines and repulational damage. We have considered the design and
implemeniation ol the conlrols management instigated to ensure the accuracy of applications and
recording of assistonce recsived. With the involvermnent of our specialist team we have inspected source
documentation and, lor o sample of cloims recaiculated amounts claimed and traced payments fo the
HMRC claims portal and Ihe bank receipt of funds ensuring consistency wilh amounts recorded in the
financiol stalements. We have also reviawed the disciosures made in respect of government assistance.

In comman with all audits undler 5As {UK), we ore also reauired to perform specific procedures to respond to
the risk of management override. in addressing the risk of froud through management gverride of controls, we
tested the appropriatenass of joumal entries and other adjustments: gssessad whather the judgements made
in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; ond evaluated the business rationale of
any significant transactions that are unusuaol of outside the noMmal counse of business.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

in addition to the above, our procedures 1o respond 1o the risks identified included the following:

+  reviewing financial statement disciosures by testing to supperting documentation to assess compliance
with provisions of relevant laws and requlations described as having o direct effect on #he financial
stotements;

«  performing analytical procedures 1o identify any unusyal o ungxpected relafionships That may indicate
risks of matetial misstatement due to fraud:

s enquiing of management conceming actual and potential iitigation and claims, and instances of non-
complionce with lows and regulations; ond

s reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and reviewing cortespandence with
HMRC.

Repoit on other legat and regqulatory requlrements

Oplinions on other molters prescilhed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion. basad on the work undernaken in the course of the audit:

+ fhe information given in the strategic report and 1he directors’ report tor the finoncicl year for which 1he
financal statements are prepared s consistent with the financial statements; and

s the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accardance with applicable legal

raquirements.

in the fight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their
enviranment ablained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the
strategic repornt or the diteclors' report,

Malters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2004 we are recuired to raport in respact of the following mattens if, in aur opinion;

= adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adeguate for our
audit have not been received from branches nol visited by us; or

« the parenl company financial statements are not in agraement with the accounting tecords and refurns;
ar

« cerfain disciosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are nat made; or

+« we have not received all the information and explanations we reqguire for our cudit,

We have rnothing to raport Inraspect of these matters,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

Use of our repart

This repon is made solely o the company’s members, as g body, in accordance with Choptler 3 of Part 14 of
the Companies Acl 2006. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we oré required to state to them in an auditor's report and for o other purpose. To
the fullest exlent permitted by law, we de not accept or assume responsibility 10 anyone ofher than the
company and 1he company's members as a body, for our oudit work, for this repert, or for the opinions we
have fommed.

Helen Wildman aCA [Senior Statutory Auditor)

fFor and on hehalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Avuditor

London
United Kingdom

2} July 2021
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Note 52 week pariod 52 week pericd
ended 27 March anded 28 March
20N 2020
£000 £000
Revenue 3 41,641 476,747
Cost of sales {19.208) {187,248)
Gross profit 22,433 287,499
Administrative expenses (114,793} (284,575]
Share of resutts of associates and idint venlures 11 (249} {702}
Operating [loss] /profit 4 {94,609) 2,222
Finance income 7 1.546 1,344
Finance costs 8 [54.072) (37,4731
Loss before tax {147.135) {33,907)
Taxation ? 8.183 7.982
Loss for the period (138,952) {25,925}
Attributable ro:
Cwmens of the Commpany {138.,752) {25,925)
Comprehensive lncome
Lews for the period {138,252) {25,925)
fterns that may be reclossified subseguently to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of Yoreign {492) 5,195
operations
ttems thot will not be reclassified subsequenliy 1o
profit or foss:
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit 274 241
chiligations
Tedal comprehansive 10ss for the period {13%2.170] (20,489}
Attibutable fo:
Qwrniers of the Company [139,170} {20.48%)
Total comprehansive loss for the poriod (139,170} (20,489}

Al activity relates to continuing operations.

There are no materal differences hetween the losses far the periods disclosed above and their historical cost

equivalents, The accompanying notes form parf of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial

statenments.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consalidated Company
27 March 28 march 27 March 28 March
2021 20720 2021 2020
£000 £00D £000 £000

nvestmants 10,33 2,178 4.356 413,835 262,575
nterests in associates and joint vertures 11,33 3,528 1.519 - -
Goodwil 12 342,884 373 - -
intangble assets 12 18,609 156,328 - -
Praperty, plont and equioment 13 389.47% 430,905 - -
Deferred tax assets 22 17,315 11.567 -
Non-curent frade and other receivables 16 22,431 23,318 - -
Non-cumnent assets 814,425 860,723 413,835 262,575
nventories 14 505 +,044 - -
investments in shows 15 2.393 3794 - -
Trade and other receivables 14 39,350 62,554 - .
Cash and cash equivalents 17 185,432 137,065 144 -
Current gssels 227,690 206,457 146 -
Tolal assets 1044115 1,067,180 413,981 262,575
Trade aond ofher payables 18 189,571 260,816 11,046 10.900
Bomrowings 19 49.370 69,370 - -
Obligations under finance leases 20 16,393 19,474 -
Provisions 21 15.801 25,483 - -
Curmrent Hablities 291,135 375143 11,044 10,700
Net current ligbllifes {63.445) [168,687) (10,00) (10,900}
Bomowings 19 514,037 454,670 - -
Obligations under finance ieases 20 149,693 157,704 - -
Deferred tax {abilities 22 28.198 28,699 - -
Non-cumrent Bablittles 691,928 643,075 - -
Total liabilitles 983,063 1,013,218 11,046 10,900
Net assets 41,052 48,942 402,935 251,675
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Company
27 March 202t 28 March 2020 27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£'000 £000 £000 £000

Shore capital 23 414 262 414 262
Share premium account 402,522 251,414 402,521 251.413
Transiation reserve 28,991 27.483 « -
Accumulated deficit (368,875 {230,197} - -
Tolal equity aftribytabla to £1.052 48 962 402,935 251,675

owners of the Company

The Camparly has taken advantage of the exemption contained within saction 408 of the Companies Act
2004 not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related notes, The result for the year
dealt with in the financial staterments of the Company was £nil {2020 Enil}.

The financial statements of were approved by thae Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 21 July 2021,
They wera signed on its behaif by:

Sl

John Oldcom
Registered Number 08749974
Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Net cash (used In)/generated from operating aclivitios

Purchases of property, piant and equipment
Purcharses of intongible gssets
Net recoupment from shows

Net cash used in Ime:ﬂng__gg!iylﬂe"sm

New shareholder loans raised

Proceeds frcm share issue

Repayments of bank bomowings

Repayment of obligations under finonce legses
interest received

interest paid

Nat cash genarated by financing activitles

Net increase In cash and cash equivalenfs

Cash and cash equivalents ot baginning of period
Net increase in cash and cash equivolents
Foreign exchange liossi/gain on cash

Cash and cash equivalents aof end of pariod

Far the 52

week

period
ended 27 For Ihe 52 weak
March pernod endad 28
20N March 2020
£900 £000
24 (108, 526) 62,235
{10,389 {40,923]
(4,343} {13,144)

1,40 1,855
113,351) {52,212) _

135,000 69,370
151,260 .
[85.500) -
{11.094) {18,028)
1,544 22
{20,994} (22.917)
170,216 28.447
48,339 38,470
13%.045 98,954
48,332 38,470
_ 11972} 1.63%
17 185,432 139.065

The accompanying noles form part of and are o be read in conjunclion with thase financial skiaternents.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

General informalon

internationat Entertainment Holdings Limited (the "Group™ is a privale Company limited by shares,
incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Cornpanies Act and i regetered in England and Wdales. The
addrass of the registered office is 28 5i. George Streat, London, W15 2FA, United Kingdom.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries {the Group] and the noture of the Group's

operations are set out inin the strategic repor! on pages 1 to 22,

These financial statements are presented in pounds staeriing because that is the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the group operates.
Adoption of new and revised stondards

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandalorily effective for the cvrent period

In the curent vear, the Group has applied amendments ta IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board {IASB] that are mandaterily effective for on accounting period that begins on or aher 1

January 2020,
the adoption of these omendments in the year did not have amaterialimpact on the fincncial statements.
MNew and revised IFRSs in Issue but not yet effective:

At the cate of authorisation of these financial statements the Group has hot applied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are no! yet effective:

- Ameandments to 1AS | - Classification of liabilities as curent or Non-current
- Amendments ta 1AS 3 - Relerance to the Concepluat Fromework
- Amendments to 1AS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates
- Amendments ta IAS 12 - Defered Toax related to Assets and Liabilities
- Amendments to IAS 16 - Properly, Plant end Equipment; Proceeds before intended use
- Ameandments to (A5 37 - Onerous Caontracts - Costs of fulfiling g conlract
- Amendments o IFRS 3 - Business Combinations
IFRS 16 - COVID-1? Related Rent concessions
- IFRS 17 - insurance contracts

- Annualimprovements 1o IFRS standards 2018 — 2020 (IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 14, IAS 41}

The Directors are curently evafuating the impact of the adoption of these standards, amendments and
interpretations but do not expect them 1o have a material impact on the Group operation or resulfs
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiicant occounfing policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statemends have been prepared in accordance with intemoational Financial Reporting
Standards (iIFRSs). The fincncial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by
the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply with Arficle 4 of the EU IAS

Regulation.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemplion contained within section 408 of the Companies Act
2008 not to present its cwn Siatement of Comprehensive Incoms gnd retated notes. The profit for the yvear
dealt with in tha finoncial statements of the Company was Enil {2020: £nil).

The financial statements have baen preparad on the historical cost bosis, except for financial instruments
that are measured af fair values al the end of each reporting pertiod, as explaned in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair vafue of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabiity in an orderly
rransaction between market participants ot the measurament date, regardiess of whether that price s
directly observable or estimated using ancther valualion technique. In estimnating the fair vatue of an asset
or a ligbility, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the osse! or liabllity f market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or iobility at the measurement date.
Fair value for measwrement andfor disclosure purposss in these consclidoted finoncial statemsnts is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment trarsactions that are within the scope of IFRS
2. leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS |7, and measuremments that have some similarities fo
fair value but are not fair value, such as ret reclisable value in IAS 2 or value in use In IAS 34,

Operating resulls

The aperating results include transactions up to and including the Saturday on or preceding 3! March of
each period.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entilies
controlled by the Company [its subsidianies). Conlrol is achieved when the Company has the power over
the investee. is exposed, or has rights, to variabie retumns from its involvement with the investee and has the
abiity to use s power o offect its retums.

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Camprehensive Income from the dole the Company gains control until the dote when the
Compaony ceases to confral the subsiciary,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policies {(conlinued)

Basls of consoidation (confinuved)

Al infragroup assets ond lickilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between the members of the Group are eliminated on consdlidalion,

Non-controling interests in subsidiaias are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. Those
interests of non-controling shareholders that are present ownership interests are initiclly measured al the
non-contreling interests' proportionate shore of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable et assats.
Subsequert to acquisition, the camying amaurt of aon-contralling interasts & tha amaount of those interests
ot inltial recognition plus the non-controlling interesis’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method, The considesation inansferred in
a business combination is rmeasured af fair value. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as

incurrad.

Googwill is measwed as the excess of the sum of the consideration ransfemred, the amount of any non-
candroling interest in the acauiree, and the fair value of the acaquirer's praviously hetd equity interest in the
acquire {if any) over the net of the ccquisition-date amounts of the identificble assels acquired and the
liabilities agsurmed,

Contingent consideration s measured ot is acquisition-dote foir volue and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes In fair value of the contingent considseration
that qualfy os measurement period odjusiments are cdjusted retrospectively. with comasponding
adjustments against goodwil. Measurement period adjustrments are adjustments that arise from additiondl
information chtained dwing a maximum period which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisifion date. Where changes occuwr to contingent
consideration thot is clossified as an asset o fability, thal do not qualify as measurement perfod adjusiments,
the contingent consideralion is remecsured at subsequent reporting dates with the comesponding gain or
ioss being recognised in profit or foss. To the extent that the terms of contingent consideration arongements
include service conditions, consideration is reated ts o cost of employment and is recognised over the

period to which tha service conditions reiate.
The Group reporis provisional amounts until the measwrement period is completed.
invesimsnis

investmants in subsidiaries are valued al cost less provision for imparment,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THF 52 WFFK PFRIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1.  Significant accounting policles (continued]

Assoclotes and joinf arrangements

An assoaciale is an entily over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiory nor
on interast in a joint venlure, Significant infuence is the power to participate in the financial and operafing
pokcy decisions of the investes but is not condrol oF joint control over those policies.

A joint arongernent is an arangement of which two or monz parties have joint contiel, Joint contfrol is the
contractuaily agreed sharing of control of an arangement, which exists omly when decisions about the
relevant aclivities fi.e. octivities that significantly affect the retiams of the arrangearment} require the unanimous
consent of the parsties sharing control. Joint arangements are classified nto two typss - joint operations and

joint ventures.

A joint opearation is a joinl arangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement (e,
joinl operators) have rights to the assels, and obligations for the liailities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is g joint arangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arangement (i.e. joint
ventures) have rights to the net assels of the arangement. The type of joint arangement is assessed by
considerng its rights and obfigations, by considering the structure and legal form of the arangement, the
confractual terms agreed 1o by the parties to the arongement and, when relevant, other facts and
circumstances.

The assets andliabilities [ond reicted revenues and expenses) of joint operaticns are recognised in proportion

1o the interest in the arangemenl.

The results and assets and fiabilities of associates ond joint ventures are incorporated in these financict
statermnents using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity melthod, aninvestment in an gssocicte
is inificlly recognisaed in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss ond other comprehensive incoms of the associate. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Graup's interest in that associale (which includes
ony long-term interests that, in subsionce, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate], the
Group discontinues recognising ifs share of further losses. Addflicnal lesses are recognised only to the extont
that the Group has incured legal or constructive oblgations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Goodwill

Goodwil Is not amortised but s reviewed for impairment at ieast annually.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwil is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
[CGUs) expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been dlocated are tested for impalrment annually, or more frequently when there & an indication $hat
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generdting unit is less than its carmving
omaount, the impaimment loss k allocated first to reduce the camying amount of any gaodwill dllocated 1o the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit prorata on the basis of the camying amount of each asset in the
urit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policies (continved)

Goodwill [continved)

Prior 1o the cument year the Group's two Geman subsidiaries, BB and Mehr, were treated as separate CGUs.
This policy has been changed to recognise BB and Mehr as one combined Mainlkond Europe CGU, diigning
the CGUs to the management's divisional view of the Group’s aclivities.

Imparment of hon-current assels

At sach balance sheet dale, the Group reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and intongible asseds
to detarmine whether there is any indication that thosa assets have suffered on impaimment loss. Goodwill is
raviewed for impairment at least annuclly.

Far the purpose of impairment tasling, goodwill is allacated. al acguisition. to the cash generating units or
group of units that are expected to benefit from that business combination,

An impairment loss s Tecognised i the camying ameount of the asset under corsideralion exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable omount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present volue using a
discount rote thod reflects current marked assessments of the time value of money and the dsks spacific to
the asset.

If the recoverable amount of the cash-gensrating unit is 1ess than tha carmrying amount of the vunit, the
irnpairment loss is alocated fist 1o reduce the camylng amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carying amount of each assel in the unit. An impairmeant loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent pefiod.

Investments in shows and co-produciion amangementy

Investments in shows are siated at cost less amounts recouped ta date, and provisions for any amounts
which the direciors do not believe are recoverable.

Production arangements are reviswed on q production-by-production basis and reated based on the

principles outlined above as either o subsidiary, an associate or joint venture or joint amangement,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significont accounting policles (continued)
Propertty, plant and equipment

Properly, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and accumulated impairments.
Depreciation is provided ot rates calculaised to wiite off tne cost of fixed assels, less their estimated residual
value, on a siraight-ine basis over thelr expected useful ives os faltlows:

Freshold buildings 40 to 50 years
Leasehold property Shorter of legsehold term and useful life of 40 to 50 years
Fixtures and fittings 4to 10 years, or over the perod o the end of the lease of the thealre

iF this [s shorter
iT Equipmenl 3to Syears

No depreciation i applied to the cost of assets in the course of construction. frechold land s not
depreciated.

intongible assels

Intangible assets af have Ffinite lives and are cormied at cost less accumulated omortisation and
acccumutated impairment losses. Amortisation s recognised on a straight-ine basis over their estimated

useful lives and is recognisad in the adminstrative oxpenses line em.

The amorisation period for soltware is 4 years. The estimated life of other intangibie assets i considered on
an asset-by-asset basis and is up to 1Q years.

Inventory

Inventory is voived at the lower of cost and net reclisable value after making due ciliowance tor chsolete

and slow-maving items.
Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of financial Position
when the Group becomes o party to the contractugl provisions of the instrument ond are initially measured
at lair value. Transaction costs thet are direclly atfributable to the acgquisition or issue of inancicd assets and
financial ficbilities. other than financial assets and finoncial liabiities at fair volue theough profit or loss
["FVTPL"), are added 1o, or deducled rom, the far value of the financial assets or financicl iabilities on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attibutable to the acquisition of fnancial assets or financial liabiities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit of loss.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles (continued)

tinarcial inskruments {continued)
Cash and cash equivolents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and escrow-type accounts. Bank
averdrafts that are repayable on demand ancd form an integrat part of the Group's cash management are
inchaded as a camponent of cash and cash equivatents for the purpose of the Statement of cash Alows.

Trade receivables ond accrued income

Trade receivabies and accrued Income are ciassified os foans and receivables ond are measured af
aomortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Since trade receivables and
accrued income are typically due within one year, and the effsct of any effective intarest is immaterial, this

eguaies to initial canying volue less any impairment,
Borrowings

Loars and Bomowings are initiclly measwred at foir value, net of ransaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effeclive interest method, with interest expense recognised on an
eftective vield biasis. The eftective interest rate is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
ligkility and of allocated interast expanse ovar the relevant period, The effective interast rate is the ratea that
exactly discounts estimated fulure cash payments through the expected life of the financial llability, or,
where appropriate, o sharter period fo the net canving amount on initicd recognition,

Trade payabies and accruals

hade payables and aceruals are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at amontised cost
wsing the effective interest method. Since frade payables and accrudls are typically due within one year,
and the effective of any effective interest is immaterial, this equates to initial camying value.

Financial guarantees
Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance cortrocts,
Delemed income

Amounts received by the Group for services perfarmed in future are classified as defermed income and
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income when the service is perfarmed.

Retirernent benefits

Payments to defined coniibution retrement benefit schames oare recognised os an expenie when
smpioyees have rendered service enditing them to the contributions. Differences between contdbutions
payable in the period and canfributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in
the balonce sheel.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signlficant accounting policles [¢continued)

Revenue

Revanue i recognised at the faF value of the consideration received or receivable ond represents
amounts receivable for goods and services pravided in the nomal course of business, net of discounts,

VAT and olher sales-related taxes. Revenue for the Group comprises several elements, including:
Yeanue rentol and proauction-refaled services

Charges 1o productions in respect of services provided {such os venue rental and staffing) are recognised
net of sales taxes as those servicos are provided.

Revenue rom production-relaled services i recagnised at the dole of perdormance of the show, undtil
which fime it is held on the Statemen! of Financial Position os Deferred Incorme,

Promotional services

The Group acts as promaoter for sell-produced shows and shows produced by third parlies. Revenue ffrom
these services is recognised ot lair value of consideration received. net of sales taxes. of the date that the
promolional services are provided.

Marketing services
Revenue from the provision of markeling services is recognised al the fair value of the consideration

received of recelvable. The far value of consiceration takes inlo account trade discounts, settlement
discounts and volume rebates. Marketing services revenue is recognised net of soles taxes over the period
that services are provided, or as recoverghle costs are incured. in accordance with the Yermns of the
contractual agreement. When recoarded markaling sewvices reverue exceeds the amounts invoiced to
clent. the excess & classified as accrued income.

Ticket sales

Revenue from ticke! salas represents the revenue eamed from commissions, credit card charges ond
similar charges. This revenue is recognised at the dale the tickst i sold.

Revenue from ticket sales where the Group is acting as seling agent {whether for its own Ytheatres or for
other UK venues} includes booking fees, commissions, and similar additional income charged at the point
of sale. These amounfs are recognised net of any sales taxes at the rarsaction date. Such revenue is
recognised as an agent rather than principal fransaction, and so excludes Ine face value of the lickets
sold.

Reldil sales

Revenue from concession sales 1o customers al the Group's venues is recognised net of sales taxes at the

paint of sale.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiticant accounting policles [continuad)

Ravanve {continuvead]

Other revenhue

The Group provides various other services on an adhoc basis, all of which are related to its principal activity.
Related revenue is recegnised ot falr vaiue over the period that such services are performed and the

performance obligations are met,
Jon! operafions

in relation to co-production arangements, whers a controlling or joint operation nterest is held, revenue
includes the Group's share of revenue for the production. Where no conholing inferest is held tumover
represents net income from productions. Whene equity accounting is apphied. the share of profit or loss i

disclosed in the "'share of results of associates and joint venturas” fine.
Government grants

Income from government grants is recognised os defemed income and meleased to the Comsolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income os the oftached conditions are salisfied. Where the grant relates to
procurement of an assel, the amount received is released to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the useful life of the asset against associated depreciation.

A material grant telcted 1o assets s prasented in the statement of financlal posifion as g deduction from

the carying value of the related asset, with a conseguent reduction in the annual charge for depreciation,

COVID-#? related job retention schemes are corsidered within the scope of IAS 20, with furlough receipts
recorded cs a reduchion in payroll expenses.

IFRS 15 leases

The Group recognises arnght-of-use asset and a fease kability at the legse commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is inificlly measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liabiity adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incured.

The right-of-use asset & subsequently depreciated using the straight-ine method from the commencermeant
date, The estimated useful ives of the right-cf-use assets are detemnined on the same basis as those of
property, plant and equipment.

The lease hability s initially measured at the present value of the lease poyments that are not poid af the
commencement date, discounted using the Group's incremental borowing rate, The liability is subsequently
adjusted for any re-measuremnent of the lease lability resulfing from reqssassments or legse madificafions,

The Group presents right-of-use assels in 'property, plont and eguipment” and lease liakilities in “financa
leases' in the statemsnt of financiat position.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significont accouniing policles (conlinued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recogrise nght-of-use assets and lease ligbilities For short-term leases of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associalted with
Ihese leases as an expensa on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

For the pumpose of the consolidaled financial stalemeants, he results and financicl position of sach Group
Company are expresiad in pouncls steding, which i the functionat curency of the Company, and the
prasentational curency for the corsolidated financial staternents.

sonetary assets ond fabilities genominated in foreign cumencies are translated into steriing al rales
of exchange niling at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign cumencies are fransialed into sterling
ot the rate rufing on the date of the fraonsaction, Such exchange gains and losses are recogrised in profil of
loss. Foreign exchange gains or losses on loans thot are effectively investment inslruments, such as wherg a
parent Company makes A loan with no repoyment terms to o subsiciary holding Company as part of
acquisition consideration, are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Raesults of overseas subsidiories are franslated at average monthly rates. Assets and liabilities of overseas
subsidiories are fransiated at the rate uling at the balance sheet date. Such exchange differences arsing
are recognised in the ransiation reserve and the Statement of Changes in Equity,

Operating profit

Operating profitis stated after the share of results of associates but before finance income and costs, other

gains and losses and taxes.

Finance income

Finance income is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it s earned.
Finance cosls

Anance costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incumed.
Other gains and losses

Qther gains and losses are recognised In profit of 1oss In the pericd in which Ihey are incured.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policies (confinued)

Pre-Production redatad costs

Expanseas incurred prior to a production going live which are directly gttibutaicle to the production of the
show arg categerised inte either property plant ond equipment and depreciated over the assumead ueful
ife of the show, or 'Other non-tangible assets’, which are released 10 the Profit and Loss over the show's
useful fife bosed upon the ratio of the current period's revenues to the estimated total revenues [Total
Production Revenue] for each production. Where estimares of Total Production Revenue decreqses.
amortization of pre-production costs may be accelerated. Conversely, if estimates of Total Production
Revenues were 10 increase then amartization of costs may be slowed.

Taxatlion
The {ax expense represents the sum of the tax cumently payable and deferred tax.

Current and delemed tox are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recagnised in other comprahensive income or direcity n equity, in which case the curent and defered tax
aie also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equily respectively. Where cumrent 1ax or
defemred tax arises from the initicd accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Current tax is based on taxabile profit for the period calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Detanred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and liabitities
in the consclldated financial statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred 1ax Giakiities are generglly recognised for ol taxable temporary differences,
Deferred iox assets are generally recognised for ol deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductibie temporary differences can

be utilised.

Such deferred fax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
trecognition of goodwil. from the initial recognition (other than in o business combination] of cssets and
fabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the taxable prafit nor the accounting profit or investments in
subsidiaries and ossociates, and interests in joint ventures, where the Group is alble to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not raverse in the foreseaabis
future. The amount of defered tax provided is based on the expected marner of reglisation or settiernent
of the carrying ameount of assets and liabilities, using tax 1ates enacted or substantively enacted ot the
financial penod end date. A deferred tax assed is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be gvaliable against which the asset con be utilised,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles {continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation flegdl or constructive} as o result of
past event, it is probable that the Group will be requised to settle that obligation and o refiable eslimate
can be made of the amount of the obfigation.

2. Ciltical accounting udgements ond key sources of estimation uncertalnty

in the application of the Group’s accounting policies. which are described in note 1. the Directors cre
required 1o maoke judgements, estimates and assumplions about the carrying omounis of assets and
siabilitias that are not readily apparent from olher sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience ond other factars that are

consigdered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoirg basis. Revisions to accounting
estimatas are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised If the revislon affec!s only thal period.
or in tha pariod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both curent and futura pericds.

Judgemenks
Golng concern basis

In order to assess whether it is oppropriate for the Group to be reported os a going concem, the Directors
are requined to make judgements regarding the Group's future trading perfarmance, cash generation and
ability to safisty its financial obligations. Having undertaken appropriate enguiries and having consicderad
the business activities and the Group's principal risks and uncertainties, the Directors concluded that the
accounts should be prepoared on a going concem basts. Please refer to the Directors' Report for our delailed
assessment of this matter.

Key sources of estimation uncertainly

Canying volue of non-current assats

impairment

The Group assesses the carmying values of property, plant and equipment, and intangibie assets annually.
Recoverability is dependent upon assumptions and eslimates regarding markel conditions, future cash

fiows and discountrates, known as at the 27 March 2021 . A material change in assumplions may signiicantly
impact the polenlial impamment of these assets.

An extension fo the dork perod of 4 months would not generate an impairment to any of the cash
genarating units {CGUs) but reduces headroom to 21%, 103%, 289% and 122% ol asset values of the UK, U3,
Gemany and Marketing Services CGUs respectively, Further detail can be found in nate 12,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

3. Revenue

e Group's revenue from extemd customens by classification is detoiled below:

52 week period 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

20N 2020

£'000 £000
venue Rental and Production Related Services 10,489 230,048
Promotional & Markefing Services 18,898 115,478
Ticket and Retail Sales 5,458 119,547
Other 4,798 11,654
Tolal revenue 41,64} 476,747

The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical location is detailed below:

§2 week perod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

202) 2020

£'000 £000
United Kingdom 21021 213847
Rest of Europe 10,949 123,473
North America 6,657 129,441
Asia 2,944 9,984
Totol revenue 41,64 476,747
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDFD 27 MARCH 2021

4. Operaling (loss)/proiit

Net loss for the perod has been arived of after charging/ {crediting):

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13
Depruciulion charge for rght-of-use assets -buikdings 13
Amortisalion of intangible fixed assels 12
impairment of property, plant and equipment 13
impairment of intangible assels 12
impairment of long torm debtor

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 13
Loss on disposal of infangible assets 12
Inventory write downs 14
Cperating lease chorges

Staff costs é
Finance income 7
Finance costs 8
Interest expense on IFRS 14 jecase habilities 8

52 week 52 wesk period
ended 28

period endad

27 March

20
£000
26615

8,801
1,988

2,816
122
194
7,018
38,487
[1,548)
47,682

6,390

March 2020

£000
21,439
8.75%
1.974
7.154
7776
8.967

2,151
137,810
[1,344)
30,926
6.547

5. Avuditor's remvuneration

The onalysis of the auditor's remunergtion is as follows:

52 week peviod 52 week period

ended 27 March endad 28
2021 March 2020
£000 £000

Fees poyable to the Company's auditor and their associates for the audit of:
The comsolidated and parent financial stalements 443 418
The sulssidiory financial staternants 50 &5
Yotal oudit fees 513 433
Taxation compliance services - y
Taxalion advisory services - 10
Tolal non-awdit fees - 81
Total 513 564
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 20218

&  Stalf costs

The average monthly number of employees {including executive directors) was:

52 week perlod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

2021 2020
Directors 5 5
Yenus staft 3074 4,349
Other 1,105 1.526
Yotal monthly average number of employees 4285 5680

The average number of individuals with an employment confract in place during the period &
4,698, Of this poputation, the total monthly average number of employees paid through the
payrol during the period is set out in the toble gbove.

Their aggregate remuneration comprised: £'000 £'000
Wages ond salories 3104 125,464
Socidl sacurity costs 5,702 $.703
Other pensicn costs 1.644 2,443
Total aggregote remuneraiion a8 487 137,810

Current year stoff cosls are presented net of income from government support schemes tokafling £41.3
milllion {2020: £nil).

Directors disclosed nere are only those employed by fhe Graup. so excliude board members employed by
the Group's sharehelders.

Ihe average moenthly number ol employees of the Company was five, being the executive directors
[2020; five|.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE AINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

5. Staff costs (conlinuved}

Remuneration of directors and key management personnel
The rermuneration of the directars and key managemenl personnel of the Group is set oul below:

52 week perfod 52 week period
ended 27 March énded 28 March

2021 2020
£000 £000
Remunerafion of directors:
Salaries, fees, bonuses, and benefifs in kind 1,045 1,501
Money purchase pension conlribulions 1 20
Tolal remuneration of directors 1.056 1.521
Remuneration of directors and key manogement personnet:
Remuneration 2,474 3.687
Social sacunty contributions 349 5132
Pension 54 &0
Total remuneralion of directors and key management 2,879 4,260

personnel

Xey monogement personneal are those who have significant influence over the operational umning of the
business, During the peariod, refirement benchils were accruing to two [2020: two) directons in raspect of
defined contribution schgmes.

The highest paid director received remunerafion of £375000 [2020: £935.000). The value of the
Company's confributions paid to o defined contiibution pension scheme in respect of that individual
amounied to £4,000 {2020: £10,000).

During the pediod, directons ond key management personnel received lolal compensation for loss of office
totaling £1,157.000 [2020: £nil}. on which social security of £143,000 {2020: £nil) was paid by the Group.

Fensions

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the scheme are held separately
frorn those of the Group h an independently administered fund. The pension cosl charge represents
conlfibutions payable by the Group to the fund and amounted 1o £1.644000 {2020 £2.441,000}
Contibulions totalling £629.000 [2020: £340,000) were payable to Ihe fund al the balance sheel date,

Employee benefit inst

The Group has no direct employee share scheme of share-based payment arongement. However, certain
employees of the Group have acquired an interest in the equity of the holding Company via an employes
benefit trust in both the cument and prior periods.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

7. Flnance lncome

52 week 52 week period

patlod ended ended 28
27 March 2021 March 2020
E'c00 £000
interest income 1,544 1,324
Unwinding of discount on long term receivabiles and - 20
payQblgs
Finance Income 1,544 1,344
8. Finonce cosls
52 week period 52 wesk period
endead 27 March ended 28 Mcarch
202 2020
£'000 £000
Interest on loans from parent underdakings LQG20 1,841
intarest on bank overdrafls and loans 25,582 22,084
interest on obligations under finonce lecses 4,995 4.957
Interest expeanse on IFRS 14 lease liabiities 6,390 6.547
Amortisation of financing fees 2,597 3.780
Fareign exchange loss/(gain) 13,418 {1,736}
Finance costs 54,072 7. 473
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

?. Taxalion

Analysis of 1ax Credit in the periocd

52 week 52 week period

period ended ended 28
27 March daarch 2020
2021

Cumrent tax £'000 £000
Tax jeredit} f charge on loss for the period [173) 431
Prior year lax adjustrment [1.333) {4570}
Foreign tax in the pericd - 967
Tofal cumrent fax (1.508) {3,172

Delerred tax 22
Deferrod tax credit current yoar (18,097} 18,333
Change in tax rate - 2,760
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 11,419 763
Total deferred fax (6.677) 14,810)
Tax on lass i8,183) 7.582)

UK corporation tax is cdlculated at 19% {2020: 19%] of the estimated taxable profit for the perad. Taxation
for other junisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in 1he respective juisdictions,

There is Nil income tax impact {2020: Nl for tems within other comprehensive income,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

¥. Taxation {continuad)

The credit for the period can be recanciled to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive iIncame as

follows;

§2 week period 52 week pericd
ended 28 ended 30 March
March 2021 2020
£000 £000
Loss before tax {147,135 {33,907}

Loss mudtiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
19% (2020: 19%)] {27,256 [6.442)

Effects ol

Expenses nol deductible for tax purposes [147) 3,564
Adiustments to tax chargs in respect of prior periods 10,087 {3,807
Non-qudlifying depreciation 728 -
Effect of different rate for deferred fax - 2,760
Effect of overseas taxrates {2,683) {3,402}
Theatre tax credit [173) (935)
Chahge in unrecognised deferred tax ossets 11,970 -
Effect of foreign exchange {15} -
Other reconciing differences R - 280
Tax credit tor the pericd {8.783) [7.782)

The closing UK deferred tax iability as at 27 march 2021 has been calcuiated of 19% reflacting the tax rate
at which the defered tax liohility is sxpected to become payable.

An InCrease in the UK corporation tax rate to 25%, effective o | Apvl 2023, was announced in finance Bill
2021 which received royal assent on 10 June 2021 bacoming Finance Bill 2021, This rate had not been
substantively enacted ct the balance sheet date and therefore s not reflected in the tax Calculotions for
the yegr ended 27 March 2021, The impact of the rate change rom 19% to 25% would be to increase the
defemed tax kabilily as at 27 March 2021 from £10,883,000 to £14.320,000.

Deferred tax liabilties have not been recognised in respect of losses in oversegs subsidianies as it is not
probaple that tuture taxable profit will be ovailable against which the unused tax losses can be ulilised,

Deferred tax assets on carried forward unutilised losses in Australio of £2,392,000 (2020: £2,097,000), Germany
of £29 575000 (2020: £10,819.000 recognised} cnd the US of £30,903,000 (2020: £nil} have nol been

recognised.

There gre ¢arried forward unudiised fax losses in the UK of £87,382,000 (2020 £351,000). A deferred tax asset
of 14,536,000 [2020: £ni} has been racognised gs it is expected that these losses will be utilised within the
next two years.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

10. Investmenis

Ihe directly and indirectly held subsidiaries are listed in note 33.

Group As ct 52waek As of 52 week
period ended peviod ended
27 March 2021 28 sMarch 2020
£'000 £0C0

Cost and nel book value
Listed investments - I
Unfisted investmerts 2178 4,355
Investments 2,178 4,354
Company As ot 52 week As af 52 week

period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £000
Cost and net book value
Subsidiary investments 413.835 262,575
Investments 413,835 262,575

The Group's unlisted investments relate to its investment in Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC, a
company incorporated in the United Stales of America of which the Group owns 1.08%.

&4
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11. Interests in associales and joint ventures ~ Group

As at 52 week  As af 52 week
period ended pesiod ended
27 March 2021 28 Morch 2020

£'000 £000
interests in joint venhyes 2831 515
interests in associates 697 i (04
inferests in associates and Joint ventures 3.528 1,519

Joint ventures

The Group nas interests in several individually immaterial joint ventures which take the form of both
productions and businesses, Fach investment & shruciured ¢s o separate vehicle and the Group has o
residual interest in the net assets of the investment, Accordingly. the Group has classified its interests as joint
ventures. For some of the productions, tha Group i enlitled 12 jess than 508% of the production aarnings
however the production agreement requires unanimous consent in decision rmaking resulting in joint control,

The fokowing companies have a year-end date different 1o the Group's accounting financial vear end of
27 March 2021;

- HP West End: 31 October 2027

- JB UK Tour Ik 31 December 2021

- Trair Times 3F LP; 31 December 2021

- Train Times Broadway LP: 31 December 2021

This is as a result of the entities not faling under [EHL hence year end dotes may need 1o suif the requirements
of all shareholders.

For the purposes of applying the equity method of accounting, the financial statements of HF West End (for
the year ended 3} October 2020), and JB LUK Tour ll, Train Time 3F LP, Train Times Broadway LP {for the year
ended 31 Dacember 2020} have been used.

The joint ventures are not restricted in their ability te transfer lunds to the Group in the fom of cash dividenas,
or to repay loans of advances by the entity.

The following tabile andlyses, in aggregate, the camying amount ond share of total comprahensive income
of these Joint Veritures,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11. Inlerests In assoclaies ond joint venlures - Group (continued)

Carnrying amount of interests In joint ventures

As ot 52 waek
petiod ended
27 Mareh 2021

£000
2,831

As gt 52week
period ended
28 March 2020

£000
515

Share of total compréhensive Income

{249)

{702)

Associates

Carmrying amount of interests in associales

As al 52 week
period ended
27 March 2021

£000
497

As at 52 week
penod endad
28 March 2020

£000
1.004

Share of tola! comprehensive income

Sensitivity: internal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12, Intanglble assets — Group

Total
Assefs under Other - infangible
Scftware  construction intangibles Assefs  Goodwil Total
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £°9a0 £°000

Cost
At 30 March 2019 163212 - 6,498 23,417 75,954 awean
Addttiens 292¢ 3.292 7,447 13,6468 - 13,648
Transfers 3,722 {3.222) - - - -
Exchange differences 3 - 442 445 4,548 5030
At 28 March 2020 23073 70 14,497 37.550 380.51¢9 418,049
Additions 1.45} 2.8%2 20 4,343 1,434 5798
Disposals (1.084] - {3,847} {4,953) - (4.953)
Exchange differences {58} - {7581 {8146) (11.627) {12,443)
At 27 tharch 2021 23,382 2,942 §.800 34,144 370,324 404 470
Accumulaled amortisation and impalrment
At 30 March 2019 8,245 - 3207 11,472 7 AT 18,%51
Charge for the 52 waek period 1.541 - 433 1.974 - 1,974
Impairment - - 7,774 7776 - 1.776
Exchange differenceas - - - - 310 ang
A} 28 March 2020 9.804 - 11,414 0,222 7,789 29,01¢
Charge for the 52 week period 1.917 - Il 1,988 1,988
Disprosals (1,003} - {3,828} (4,831} - (4,831}
Exchange differences {47] - {797} _ {add) {347} {1,191)
Al 27 March 2021 10.673 - 4,842 17,535 7,442 24,377
Carrying amount
Al 28 March 2021 12,70% 2,942 2,936 18,609 342,884 281,493
At 28 March 2020 13,247 70 2,991 14,328 3a7:,730 382,058

The amount of expenditures recognised in the camying amount of assetfs under construction is £2.9 milion

{2020 £3.3 million}.

Other intangible assats relote to show rghts costs and pre-praduction related costs.

The Comprany has no Intongible assets 12020 Enil},
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THC 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. intangible assets - Group {continved)

Gooawil acquired in a business combinalion is dglocdied, of acquision. o the cash genorating units
(CGUs) or group of units that are expectad to benefit rom that businass combingtion, The carrying amount
of goodwill has been allocated to the following CGUs:

At 27 March

20

£000

United Kingdom 249,834
USA 60,074
tAainland Europe w27
Marketing services 13,757
Tatal goodwill 352,884

The Group tests goodwill and Intangicle assets annually for impaimnent, or more frequantly i there aro
indications that goodwill might be impaired. Property, plant and equipment is also tested for impairment i
there are indicators of impaiment, which there have been in the curent and pricr yecr. The recoverable

armounts of the CGUs and the group of units are determined from value in use calculations.

The impairment reviews for United Kingdom, USA, Mainland Europe ond Marketing Services do not indicate:
any impairment against goodwil, other intangibles or property, plant and equipment.

The keay assurmplions and resulting attibutes of the impakrment review are as follows:

UnRed Mainland  Markeling
£Ms Kingdom USA Eviope Services
Goodwil 245.8 &0.1 392 13.8
PPE # Other intangibles 2478 94.8 440 8.7
Total assets 497.4 154.9 852 225
WA CC assumption 10.4% 11.0% 10.0% 10.4%
GOP growth 20% 20% 2.5% 2.0%

68

Sensitivity: Internai Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Inangible assels - Group {continved)

The values for the key ossumptions were onived ot by taking into consideratfion historicat information ond
comparing to extemnal sources where appropriate, such as market rates for discount factors. GOP grawth
rates are used os the terminol value growth rate in calculating the net present values of the respective
CGls, while the inflation ratas are applied os the hase growth factor for years 2 to 4,

Eudgeted cash flows - the calculation of value in use has been based on the cash flows forecast in tha

Group's latest five year plan,

The five year plan assumes that COVID-19 confinues 1o disrupt the Group thraugh FY22, with vandng re-
opening dates across our territordes starting from October 2021, The Group’s cash flows are forecast fo return
to pre-COVID-1% leveals in FY23.

The following sensitivities were applied 10 the impaimnent test:

Sensitivity 1 - dark peried: A plausitle extension to the dark period of & months would not generate an
impaiment ta any of the cash generating units {CGUs) but reduces headraom to 21%, 103%, 289% and 122%
of asset values of the UK, US, Mainiond Europe and Marketing Services CGlUs respectively.

Sansitivity 2 — discount rate; A five percentage points increase in the discount rate would create an
impairment to the UK CGU and reduce haadroom to 34%, 143% and 513 of asset volues of the US, Mainiand
Europe and Markeling Services CGls respectively.

The increase in discount rate reguired to creale an impaitmeant 1o each CGU s UK 1% US 8%; Mainland
Europe 21%; and Maketing Services 10%.

This sensitivity wos also tasted ot a venue level. A five percentage points incregse in the discount rate

would create impairments to four UK verwes, one US venue and cne Mainland Eurcpe venve.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

13. Property, plant and equipment - Group

Right Lloeng-term  Shori-lerm Fixtures

Freehold ofUse lepsehold leasehold  Assefs under and
property Asset properly propety  consiruction tings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost

At 30 March 2019 163604 - 140,488 22,367 7.702 74,137 408,500
Additions 8.221 - 10,223 592 8,553 14,145 43,739
IFRS |6 — Right-of-use asset - 87590 - - - - 87.590
Tronskers - - - - (10.257) 10,257 -
Exchange differences %02 3,594 - 2,581 {370 {53] 210} 4,444
At 28 March 2020 172,729 91,184 153,497 22.589 5945 100,329 544273
Aciditions 2,258 - 240 25 4,445 1,400 10,388
Dispasals (204] {255) {119} 1783) - {25975) (27.336)
Transfer 63 - - - {8.874) 3813 -
Exchange differences  _[1448] (5809)  (7.841) - (28] {2.400) (17.529)
At 27 March 2021 173,398 85,120 145,777 21,831 3.5046 82,164 511,79

Accumuloled depreciation ond Impalment

At 30 March 2019 16,836 - 26,740 4,347 - 27,114 77037
Charge for the 52 week period 3,429 B.759 5.053 598 - 12,359 30,198
Imnpairment - - - . - 7.154 7.154
_Exchange differences - - 684 - - 295 e
Al 28 March 2020 20,265 8,789 32,477 4.945 ] - 48922 15348
Charge for the 52 week pericd 6,514 8.801 5334 483 - 14,284 IS 414
Disposals {194) - [¢1} {770) - [23.445} (24,520}
Exchange differences {275) (479 {1.653) - - 11540} (3,947}
Al 27 March 2021 - 2,310  17,080% 35,067 4.458 . 38,201 122377
Camying amount
At 28 Morch 2021 147,088 48,039 109,710 17,173 3.504 43,963 389,479
At 28 March 2020 152,464 82,425 121,020 17644 5,945 51.407 430,905

The amount of expenditures recogrised in the canying amount of assets under construction is £6.5 miliion
{2020: £3.4 million].
The Company has no property. plant and equipment {2020: Enil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

14, Iwenlories - Grovp

Asat 52 Asal 52week
waek patlod period ended
ended 27 23 Moarch 2020

March 2021
£'300 £000
Finished goods of cost 462 1.395
Inventory provision (157) 1351}
Finished goods and goods lor resale 505 1,044

The Group wrote Off £194,000 of inventory during the year {2020: Enil).

The Company has no Inventory {2020; £nil).

15. Invesiments In shows - Group

Asal §2 week  Aj ot 52 wesk
period ended  period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £'000
investmenis In shows 2,393 3,794

Invesiments in shows reftect the Group's investment in productions in which it does not have o contralling

interest.

The Company has ne investments in shows [2020: £nilj.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

14. Trode and ctherreceivables - Grovp

Az of 52 week A at 52 week
perlod ended pericd ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£000 £000
Notes receivabie 9,656 10,964
Other non-cumrent receivables 12775 12,352
Amounts receivable after more than 12 months 22,431 23,318

The notes receivable balonce comprises amounts receivable from counterparties in relation to the
financing structure of the redevelopment of The Hudson Thealre via a well-used arrangement created by
the US government to encourage financial institutions 16 invest into redevelopment of historic buitdings.
Interest is receivabie at rates between 0.48% and 0.5%. These will ba recoverable from the counterparties
either over the ife of the inshument or by fransfer of leasehold interests, The long-term receivable relates o
< balance acqured as part of the ACE acquiition and is o fee for theatre development services provided
which will be pond over a number of years.

As of 52 week As at 52 week
period ended  period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £'000
Trade receivables 14,989 29,385
Prepayments and accrued income 6,611 11,619
Coporation tax receivable 4,747 5,037
VAT recelvable 3,982 -
Cther receivables 2,031 16513
Amounts recelvable within 12 months 39,340 £2,554

Cther racsivables include o related party balance of £3.7 million due from the Group's parent company,
IE Luxco S.a.rl (Luxembourg) (2020: £3.7 mifion].

The Company hod no frade and other receivables {2020: Enij.

Al impaired trode receivables have been provided to the exterd they are believed not to be recoverable.
The maximum exposure to credit rsk at the reporting date is the foir value of each class of receivable. The
Group does nat hold any colioteral as security, Assels which are neither past due nor impaired ore

considerad fully recoverable.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

16. Trade ond other recelvabiles - Group (conlinued)

Anatysis of frade receivable ngeing

Credit sk managemen!

Cradit risk refers to the risk that a courterparty will default on its contraciual chiigations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. As of 28 March 2020, some of the Group's frade receivables were due and/or past due
bul not impaired. Thase ralate to o number of independent customers with no material concentration within
any one customer and no custorners who are of particularly high risk of default. The ageing onalysis of these
frade receivables s as folows:

As at 52 week As af 52 week

petod anded 27 pericd ended
March 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £000
Up to 3 months 4,449 192,338
3 ta 6 monihs 234 2,929
Over & months 10,720 10,316
Total 15,623 32,583

As of 27 March 2021, the Group also held past due rade receivables which had heen provided for:

As al 52 week A5 ot 52 week
pericd ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £000
Up to 3months 123 2078
3 to é months 130 217
Cver & monihs as! 503
Total 434 3198

Under IFRS 2, the Group is required to ulllise objective evidence as well as consider forward looking
information, such os the economic conditions in the countiies where the Group operates, and the
probability of default when calculating expected credit losses. The maturity of financial assets is therefare

used as an indicator as to the probability of default,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

17. Cash and cash equivalents —~ Group

Az ot 52 week As at 52 week
peariod ended peariod ended 28
27 March 2021 March 2020
£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents held in own accounts 152,872 130,216
Cash and cash equivalents held in escrow 2,560 8.849
Cash and cash equivalents 185,432 139,065
The Company has £146,000 of cosh and cash equivalents {2020: £ni].
18. Trade and other payables - Group
As at 52 week As ot 52 week
perlod endaed periad ended
27 March 28 March 2020
20
£000 £000
Trade payables 26,434 37,155
Defeved incoms 113,802 142,356
Accruals 35,685 58,476
Cther taxation ond social security 2007 4,915
Tax creditor 1,981 2,104
Cther payabiles 8,734 15,014
Govemment grants received and not utilised 923 794
Trade and other payables due within 12 months 189,571 260,818

The Company has an intercompany payabie of £1 1.0 milion [2020: £10.9 milion) which is repayable on

demand, no interest is charged.

The other payables balance includes payroll creditors and amounts due to produchion companies.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

13. Borowings — Group

As ot 52 week Asat 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 28 March 2020

201
£'000 2000
Bank loans - senior dabt 358,000 358,000
Banik leans - revolving credit facility 49,370 £2.370
Tolal senlor debt 427 370 427,370
Fair volue adjustment / unomortised financing fees 15,858 14,26)
Bank loans - other - 84,409
Sharehaider ioans 139,172 -
Bomowings 583,407 526,040
Amount dua for settiement within 12 months £3.370 69,370
Amount dua for settliement aofter 12 months 514,037 456,670
Borrowings 583 407 524,040

The bank loans - semor debl, are secured by a charge over the asssts of Intemational Entertainment
Finance Limited, a subisidiary of the Company and the maojority of its subsidiary undertakings. Thease loans
bear interast at a rate which fluciuates in ine with LIBOR with a margin wanging between 4.25% ond 4.75%

ond are governed by a senior finance agreement with requisite covenants.

The Group aiso has [oans from its sharehelders totalling £132.2m, including accrued interest (2020: £N7].
Interest is non-cash paying and accrues o fixed rotes ranging betweaen 4.0% and 10.0%.

As of 52 week As at 52 week
period ended pericd ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£'000 £000
Bank Ioans - senior debt 4237 370 427,370
Bank loans - ather - 84,409
Shareholder loans 139,179 -
Fair value adjusiment 18,681 18,661
Unamortised finoncing fees {1.803) {4,400)
Borrowings 583,407 526,040

The Company does not have any borrawings (2020; £nil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

20. Obligations under finance lausas - Group

As ab 52 As at 52 week
week period period ended 28
ended 27 March 2020
March 2021
£'000 £000
Amount due within 12 months
Finance leases 4211 4,270
IFRS 16 leqses 12,182 15,204
Obligafions under lease liabililies 14,393 1¢.474
Asat52  Asat 52 week
waek pericd pericd ended 28
ended 27 March 2020
Muarch 2021
£000 £000
Amount due after 12 monlhs
Finance leases 86,558 86,629
IFRS 14 leases &3 137 71,077
Obllgalions undear lease Hablities 149,493 157,704

Finance leases - Group

Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum lease
payments
27 March 2021 28 March 2020 27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Within one year 4329 4,284 4,211 4.270
In the second to fifth yaars 17,753 17.578 15134 14,985
inclusive
After five vears 400,673 405,639 73,944 73,476
422,755 427,503 23311 22.731
Less: fulure Ainance charges {329,444} {334,439)
13311 23,054 1301 92,731
Unamortised finance costs {2.544) {2,145) {2.544) {2,1435)
Prasant value of lease ¥0.787 90,899 90,747 0,564
cbligations
Amount due within 12 maonths 4211 4,270
Amount due after 12 months 86,556 86,629
0,747 0,897

The Group leases certain properties under fingnce fease arangemeants. The average lease term is 75 years.

the Group does not have the option 1o puwrchase the properties for a nominal vaiue at tha end of the lease

terms, and the Group's obligations under fhe finance leases are secured over the properties being leased.

Inlerast rates underdying all obligations under finance leases are implicit rates ranging from 5.3% 1o 5.8%

(2020: 5.3% lo 5.8%}.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

20. Obfgations underfinance leases - Group {continued)

IFRS 14 lease labilltles - Graup

As o 52 week Asat 52week
perlod ended pericd ended
27 March 2021 28 March

2020
£000 £000
Current 12,182 15,2014
Neon-current 63137 71,077
IFRS 14 lease liakility 75.31¢% 85,281

The weighted average incremental borowing rate applied to measure lease liabilities is 7.92%,

As al 52 week

period ended 27

March 2021

Maturity analysis £'000
Mo fater than | year 12,182
Later than | year and not later than 5 years 29,958
Laler than & years 379
Bne

The Group does not tace o significant liquidity risk with regord to its lease liabilities. Lease licbiities are
monitored within the Group's treasury function. Overal the variable payments constitute up to 5% of the
Group's entire lecse payments. The group expacts this ratio ta remain constant in future years. The variable
payments depend on ticket sales and comsequently on the overall economic developrrent over the next

faw years. The total cash outflow for leases amounted to £13.6m (2020: £13.4m).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

21. Piavksions - Gioup

Acquisition- Dilapidations Relunds and Other Total

related Ticketing
pravistons Provision
Group £000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
At 30 March 2017 11,34 433 - 712 12,4886
Additions - 2,411 11.241 - 1 3,852
Utilised freleased {1,055} - - - {1.055)
At 28 March 2020 10,28% 3244 11,241 712 25483
Addilions - 226 377 1,142 3.889
Forelgn sxchange adjustments {451} 20 - - {794)
Utilised/releasad - - {10,804] {190 (12777)
Al 27 March 2021 7,835 3,490 812 1,644 15801

Acquisition-related pravisions relate to earn out agreemenks inrespect of the acquisitions of Mehr{ Grpup_.

The consideraticn is payable dependent on success factor criteria over Ihe next two years.

Dilapidations relate to the expacled lavsl of dilgpidations mainly related to central offices. The adequacy
of the provisions is perigdically reviewed 1o ensure that they will meet the final obligations.

The Company has ne pravisions [2020: £nil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

22. Oeferred fax - Group

Revaluation Acceferated Acquisition Tax losses Other iming Totat

of property fox Iinfangibles differences

depreciation

£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
At 30 March 2012 24,457 {654] 2,199 (2.442} {1,618} 21,942
Charge/sjcredt) to profit of loss 2118 52 (73} %12} {5,993 {4.810)
At 28 March 2020 26,573 (502) 2,126 {3,354) {7.611) 17.132
Chorge/icredit) to profit of 10ss §654] 842 {87} [13,182) 6,832 {6,249
Al 27 March 2021 25919 240 2,059 {14.534) (77%) 10,883
2¥ March 28 March
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Deterred fax iabilitias 28198 28,699
Deterred tox assets 117.315) {11,567}
Net deferred tax Habllity 10,883 17,132

Recognisad deferred tax ossets are expecied to be realised by profits generated in future years in each

relavant iemitory.

The Company has no deferred tax {2020 £nilp.

23. Share capltal -~ Graup and Company

Numbet of €1 Nominai
Crdinary shares value
£000

Authorised, Bsued ond fully posct
At 30 March 2019 and 28 March 2020 262,167 262
Neal proceeds of shares issued 151,280 152
At 27 March 2021 413,427 414

On 14 Cctober 2070 an additional 85,500 Ordinary shares were issued in the Company with g nominal vaive
ol £1 each tor & total corsideration of £84k.

On 25 March 2021 an additiongl 65,761 Ordinary shares were issued in the Company with a nominal value
of £1 each for a total consideration of £45k.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

24, Notes to the cash flow statement

Net cash generated by operating activilles

For the 52 week For the 52

perlod ended  week period

27 March 2021 ended 28

March 2020

£'000 £000

COperating floss) /profit (74.607) 2222
Impainment of assels - 14,930
Amortisation of intangible fixed assels 1,988 1.974
Depreciation of propertty, plant and equipment 26,615 21,43%
Depreciation charge for ight-af-use assets - bulldings 8.801 8,759
Share of resulls of assoclates and joint ventures (249) 1702)
{Decregse}/increase in provisions {9.682) 2,959
Operating cash flows before movements in working capitat {67.134) 58,581
Decregse/{increase] in inventories 539 (125)
Decrease inreceivables 24,081 1815
|Decrease}/increase in payabiles {68.147) 85966
Cash flow from operaling aclivities {110.663) 69,237
Corporate tax received/{paid) 2,137 (7.002)
Net cash flow from operaling activitles {108.524) 62,235
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

24. Notesto cash llow statement {continued)

Net debt reconcliallon
As at 52 week As at 52 waek
petiod ended 27 peariod ended 28
Morch 2021 March 2020
£000 £'030
Bank ioans - senior debt {358,000] £358.000)
Bark loans - revolving creclit facility [69.370) 169.370)
Total senlor debt {427,370} (427 370}
Fair value adiustmentf unameortised financing {16858} {14,241}
fees
Bank loans - other - {84,407}
Shareholder loans {139.179) -
Obligatians under finance [eoses {164,086) {177.180)
Toked dabt (749.493) (703.220)
Caosh and cash eqguivalents 185,432 139,065
Net debt {544,081) (544,155)
Movement In net debt
Cash at bank Debt Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Net debl as at 28 March 2020 1392.045 (703.220) (544.155)
Cash flows 48,339 {38.4046) 9.933
Foreign exchange adjustments (1,972 - {1¥72)
Other non-cash movement - {7.867} (7.867)
Net debt as ot 27 March 2021 185,432 {74%.493) (564,041}
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

25 Conlingent labililies

A corporate cross guarantee of the senior debt exists between the Compony and the majority of its
subsidiary undertakings. The senior deb! is secured by a debenture over the majority of the assets of the
Group. The Group also has in place various guarantees across its porffalio, which are typical of commercial
and property rental agreemends.

24. Conlingent assels

At the bolonce sheet date the Group had applied 1o the Geman goveinment For COVID-12 refated gront
income, At that date management deemed it probable that the applicalion wauld be successful, with

expected fulure income of €10.8 millicn.

27. Commitments

Caplat commiiments

Al the bolance sheet date, the Group had material contractual commitments for capital expenditure of
Enil {2020: £ril).

2a. Financlal risk management

Capttal risk management

The Group's objectives when managing copital are to maximise shareholder value whilst safeguarding the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. In commaon with other private eaulty porliolio companies,
the Group canies a high level of net debt compared to eguity. Total capilal is calcuiated s total equity as
shown in the consclidated statement of position, plus net bank debl. Net bank debt s caolculaled gs the
total of long and short term bomowings as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, less
cash and cash equivalents.

Financlal rlsk monagement objeclives

The Group's octivities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including cumency risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk. ond liguidity risk.

The Group's overall fisk managemont programme focuses on minimising polential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Descriptions of the financial risks and how these are managed and mitigoted ore included in the Strategic
Reporl on pages 11 and 12,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conliinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

28. Financial risk management (continued)

The below table demonstrates the sensitivily to a reasonably possible change in interest rates and foreign

exchonge rotes.
Financlal rsks Sensiivity analysks
Interest rate risk An  increase/decrecse  of one percentoge point in LIBOR would

increase/decragse the Group's loss by £4,087,000 (2020; £5,117,000].

Foreign exchange Had GBF strengthened against the US dollar by an additionai 1% duwring ihe
fisk perind, assuming afl other variables remained constant, the Group's loss
would have decreased by £288,000 (2020 £191.000}.

Had GEP strengthened against the Eure by an additional 1% during the
period, assuming all other variables remained constant, the Group's loss
would have decreased by £110,000 {2020: increase of £352,000).

Liguidity

The following tables detall the Group's contractual matuiities for its financial habifities with agreed
repayment perods. The tables have been drown up based on the undscounted cash flows of financial
iabiiities ond bosed on the eariest dote on which the Group con be required to pay. The table Includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest llows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curves at the balance sheet date. The Group is not party to any
derivative contracts.

Less thon §
vear 1.5 years 5+ yacous Tatal
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
27 March 2021
Trade and other payables 72,845 - - T2 845
Finance legse kabilities 4,329 17.753 400,673 422,755
Borrowings 69,370 514,087 . 543,407
Total cash-settled liobllities 146,554 531,790 400,673 1.077,027
28 morch 2020
Trade and cther payables 115,108 - - 115,105
Finonce lease ligblities 4,286 17.578 405,439 427,503
Borowings £9.370 456,670 - 526,040
Total cash-seitied labliiles 188,742 474,248 405,629 1,068,449

The Company has no relevant cash-settied assets or liabilities and so has no liquidity risk.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FCR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

29. Financlal Instrumenis

Categories of inancial Instruments

Cash and Financial Total
recelvables Habllities ol
amorlised cost
£'000 £'000 E'000

27 Maich 2021
Cash and cosh equivalents 185,432 - 185,432
Teade ond other receivables 39,360 - 39,350
financlal assels 224792 - 224,792
Trade and other poyables - 74846 74,844
Bomowings - 583,407 583,407
Obligations under finance leases - 166,084 186,085
Financlal kabliies - 824 339 824,237
Net finoncial assets/{liabilfties) 224,792 (824,33%) {599.547)
25 March 20208 _ )
Cosh ond cash equivalents 139,085 - 139,045
Trade ona otherreceivables 62,554 - 62,554
Fingnciagl assefs 201,419 - 201,617
Financiol labilifies
Trade and other payables 117,210 117,210
Bormrowings - 526,040 526,040
Obligations under finonce leases - 177.180 177,180
Financilal labiliies - 820,430 620,430
Net financial assets/(labilities) 201,619 (820,430) (618.811)

Fair valve measurements

The directors consider that the camying amounts of financial assets and financiatl liabilities recorded at

amortised cost in the financict stofements approximaie to their tair values.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

30. Controlling porly

The Company's ultimote parent company i IELuxco 5.a.r] {Luxembourg), which is controlled by Providence
Equity Partners Vil A LP {Cayman Ekiandsj and Providence Vil Global Holdings LF {Cayman ilands. The
Directors consider these parties 1o be the controling party.

31. Related porty transactions

Group
Tromsactions with direciors and key management personng!

Remuneration paid to the directors or other, who are considered fo be key management personnel, is
disclosed in note é.

Trading ironsactions

Duwing the pedod. the Group provided productionrelated servicses to associates ond joint venhaes of
£328 542 [2020: £51 875). Al the end of the period, balances of £1.951.044 (2020 £115,585) were owed o
the Group by the associales and joint ventures. These balances are unsecured and wil be setiad
pericdically over the course of the production. There are cusrenily no provisions rekating to these balances.

These transactions have been conducted at arm's length.
32, Events affer balance sheet dale

On 10 December 2020, EHL US Holdings, Inc, entered into a sale and purchase agreement for the
acquisition of Brogdway Son Francisco, LLC aond Nederiander Detroit, LLC for consideration ot £173.9
millian. On 29 March 2021 the conditions were met to define the acguisition date of this transaction,

This acouisition adds two theatres in San Francisco ond three in Detroit 1o the Group's portiolio of owned

and operated venues.

Subsequent to the period end the Group received €54 milion of COVID-19 related govermment gront
incame rom the German government.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiary entlties, assoclates and joint ventures and invesiments

Subsidiories

100% ol the ardinary share capital of all subsicharies is owned direclly orindirectly uniess otherwise indicated,
Where indicated, sharehaldings are effeclive cwnership percentoges a5 held by the parent fie. if o
subsidiary holding company is 0% owned, and owns 100% of gl ifs subsidiaries, all subsidiarnies are shown as
being $0% owned].

incorporated in United Kingdem

All subsidiaries have Iaken the $477a exemplion from cudit under parent company guarantes.

Subsidiary undertaking % Shares hetd Principal activity
Direct investments
Intemnational Entertainment Midco Limited! Holding company
Indirect Investments

AKA CP Limited? Marketing services

AKA Group Limitec?
AKA NYC Umited?
AKA Promotions Limited-

Holding company
Marketing services
Marketing services

ATG Entertainment Limited? Holding cempany

ATG London Limited® Theatrs opergtor and
ticketing company

ATG Management Limiteg? Domnaont

ATG Productions Limited? Production company

Aylesbury Walerside Thealre Limitea® Theatre operator

Churchili Theatre Bromley Limited?
CP Studio Limited?
Digital Media Services UK Limited?

Thealre operator
Marketing services
Qigital media services

Encore intemationat Merchondise Limileg? Merchandiser

First Fomily Entertginment LLP? Production company
G.S Lashmar Limited? SO% Dormant
Glasgow Theatres Limited? Theatre operator
Highland Fing lapan Limited® Domant
International Entertainment Finonce Limited! Holding company
International Entertainment investments Holding compony
Limfted!

London Theatre Clul Limitad® Domant

London Tumshde Lirnited® Dormani

Milton Keynes Theatre Umited? Theatre operater
New wimbledon Thealre Limited® Theatre operator
Playhouse Theatre Limited? Theatre operator
Richmond Theatre Limited? Theatre gperator
Savoy Theatre Group Umited?® Holding company
Savoy Theatre Holdings mited? Domant

Savoy Theatre Limited? Theatre opearator
Screenstage Limited? Cormant
Screanstage Praductions Limited? Domnant

Srmart Plays Limited® Oomant

Sonia Friedman Productions Limitec? Production company
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiary entities, assoclafes and Jaint ventures and investments {continued)

SFP Draams Limited?

SFF Shows Limited?®

SHP Sunny Limited?

Stoke-on-Trant Theatres Limited?

The Ambassador Fnterfainment Group
Limnited?

The Ambassador Theatre Group Limitecd?
The Ambassador Theatre Group [Yenues)
Limitegs

Thea Ambassadaor Thedire Group Overseas
Heoldings Limited?

Theatre Management (Holdngs) Limitad®
Thaaire Managemsent Limited:

The Duke of Yark's Theatre Limited?®

The Ticket Machine Group Limited?®
Theatre Royal Brightan Limited?

Walter's House Limited?

wWoking Tumstyle Limited?

theorporated In USA

Subsidiary underaking % Shares held

ACE Thealtcal Groug, LLC?

Arts Center Enterprises, LLC?

Arts Centar Entamrises — Brooklyn, LLC?

Arts Center Enlemyises — New Odeans, LLC?
Arts Cenler Enfenprises — Sugar Land, LLC !¢
Ambassador Theatre Group — NY, LLC?

ATG Colonial, LLCY

AlG 3an Francikco

ATG Tickets US, LLCS

Cragtive Partneship LA, Inc’?

Encore rerchandising, Ihc'd

Hudson Theatre, LLCS

[EHL U5 Holdings Ine?

Kings Theatre Developer, LLC?

Kings Theotre Manager, LLCS

Lyric Theatre, LLCS

tMajestic Presents LLC”

Saenger Agaregator Leverage Lender, LLC
Saenger Theatre Developer, Inct

Saenger Theatre Manager, LLCS

Saenger Theatre Master Tenant LLC

Saenger Theaire Parmership, Lid?

SFP-NY, LLCS

Saenger Theatre Redevelopment Comparny LLCT
Sundance Productions, Inc8

The Ambassadsr Theatrs Group US Holdings. Inc®
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Production company
Production company
PFroduction company
Theatre cperator

Holding company

Halding and productions
Theatre cperator

Helding company

Holding company
Theatre gperator
Thedatre operator
Ticketing agency
Theatre operatar
Theatre operator
Theatre operator

Principal activity

Management sevices
Thexatre operator
Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Venue gperator
Production company
Yenue operator
Venue operator
Tickeling agency
Marketing senvices
Darmant

Theatre operator
Holding company
Venue developer
Managing member
Theatre operator
Thegtrs operator
Firancing company
Venue developer
Managing member
Theatre operator
Dormmant

Producfion compoany
Venue developer
Production company
Holding company



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiary enlifies, associates and Joint ventures and Investments {continved}
Incorporated in Germany

The following subsidiaries have elected o apply the exemipfion available under §244, section 3 of the
German Commercial Code and have not prepared and pubiished financial statements under Gerrman

GaAAF because they are included as fully consolidated subsidiaries in the ATG Group finoncial statoments,

Limited'?

Subsidiary undesaking % Shares held principal aclivity

BY Entertanment Holding GmbH? Holding company

B8 Group GmbH® Holding/Management
services company

B8 Promotion GmbH? Promotions company

Bodyguard Vorwalhungs GmbH '™ Holding company

Bodyouard Musical GmbH & Co XG0 Production company

ESMS GmibH? Marketing services

Fandongo Musicol GmibbH? Preduction company

On Stage Productions GmbH'4 Preduction company

Mehr-88 Entertainment GmbH'? Helding company

Deutsche Eintrittskarten TKS GmbH Ticketing company

Deulsche Eintrittskarten TKS Service Centor GmbH's Ticketing compary

Dirty Dancing Toumee Procduktions GmbH & Co, KG'# Production company

Mehr-BB Theater GrmbH'é Theater operater

MMS Mahrt Marketing & Sales GmbH'? Marketing services

Musical-Dome Verwaitungs- und Behiebsgeseliscoft Theater operator

mbH"?

Starignt Express GmbH'# Production company

HP-Theater Produklionsgeselischaft mbH' Production company

Dirty Dancing Gostspiel Verwaitungs GmbH's Holding company

incorporated in Australio

Subsidiary undertaking % Shares held Principal acRvity

AKA Promotions [Australia) Pty L1dY! Markeling services

Encore Merchandise (Austraiia) Ply Limited ! Dormant

The Arnbassador Theatre Group Asia Pacific Pty Production company

Associates and Jolnt Ventures
Name Incomporated % Sharev held  Frincipal aclivity
A S5, Concerts & Promofion GrmmbH Germany 49 8% Procuction company
HP West End Limiled? United Kingdom 25% Producion compdany
4B UK Tour ¥ Produchions Lic? United Kingdom 0% Production company
ISM Show AGHR Swikzerland S0P Production company

88

Sensitivity: Internal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiary entlties, associates and joint ventures and investments {confinved)

Cther Invesiments

Name Incorporated % Shares held Princlpal activity
Cievan investments Ltd United Kingdom 10% Production company
Kings Theaire Redeveioprment Company  USA 1.06% Venue deveioper
uc

Maeyrlin Entertainments pic Unitad Kingdom 0.00% tntertainment group
Stageservice Frankfurtam Main GmbH Gemany 10% Production company

! These companies have a registered office of 28 $t, George Street, Londorn W13 2FA

Thesa companias have a registered ofice of 115 Shaftesbury Avenue, Cambridge Circus, Landon WC2H 8AF
3These companies have O ragisterad office of 20 Floor Alexgnder Howse, Church Path, Woking, Surey
GU21 4E4

$This company has aregistered office of 5% Floor. B% New Bond Street, Landon W18 1DA

sThese companies have d reqgistered office of Capitdl Services. Inc., 1675 South State 5t, Ste B, Dover,

DE 19901

$These companies have a registered office of Capitel Corporate Services, Inc., 8550 United Ploza Bldg. ! Ste
305, Baton Rouge, LA 70809

’These companias have a registarad affice of Copitol Corporate Services, Inc., 206 E. th 51, Ste 1300,
Austin, TX 78701

8This company hos aregistered office of Filelon, Lasky, Aston, Couture, & Garmise, Richard Garnmise, 551
Sth Ave #6805, New Yark, NY 10174

?These companies have a registered office of RontgenstraBe 7, 68167 Mannheim

"“These companies have aregistered office of Landsbergstraie 28, 50678 Koin

"Thase companies have o registered office ot Suite 4.1, Level 8, 3 Bowsan Crescent. Melboume, Yictora
3004, Australio

2 This company has a registered office of Suite 3, Levet 1, 4 - 10 Bay Streef, Double Bay, NSV 2028

This company has g registered office of Carmenstrafe 12, 8032 Zurich

M 1nis company has a registered office of Komaeadienstr. 11, 50667 Kdin

13 This company has a registered office of Brkrather Str. 30, 40233 Dosseldorf

Y This company has a registered office of BanksstraBe 28, 20097 Hamburg

7 This company has o registered office of Goldgasse 1, 50648 KoIn

BThis company has a registered office of Stadionnng 24, 44791 Bochum

1% This company has a registered office of 1800 Post Cak Bivd, 4 Bovlevard Place, Suite 450, Houston, Texas
77056

s company has aregistered office of 1313 N Markeat §t., Ste 5100 Wilmington, DE 196801
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